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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In Thousands Pesos, Except Per Share Data

Stockholders’ Equity

P4,103,727 P4,642,187

Net Revenues'
2015 2014

P16,554,541 P14,920,577

Basic Earnings
Per Share

2015

(P1.52) (P2.84)

Net Income/(Loss)

2015 2014

(P385,596) (P766,207)

Stockholders” Equity
Per Share?

P12.86 P14.55

1 Exclusive of discontinued operations
2 Based on the number of shares outstanding at the end of each year
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MESSAGE TO

JCKHC

showing in three years. After another year

of growthin sales volumesand animproved
bottom line, we're more than just cautiously
optimistic that the oldest spirits company in
the Philippines has turned a corner towards
recovery.

In 2015, our company registered its best

In revitalizing our company, we've learned
that the best way to achieve fresh growth is
to continuously engage those who are equally
passionate about moving our company
forward.

As such, “Together We Grow” is the theme
of our 2015 annual report. In these pages, we
report on the achievements that are the result
of the collaboration among our employees,
business partners, and dealers.

Today, Ginebra San Miguel Inc. continues to
strive to strengthen and expand its business.
With a more synergistic approach, creative
and inspiring ad campaigns that speak to

an entirely new generation of consumers,
and significant improvements in operational
execution, we are steadily gaining on the
majority of our key performance metrics,
and setting out a path for further profitable
growth.

As our rivals lost ground, a recent report by
global research firm Nielsen recognized GSMI
as the fastest-growing liquor company in the
Philippines in terms of market share in 2015.
We owe much of our success to our “Ganado Sa
Buhay” campaign, which helped re-establish
the popularity of our flagship Ginebra San
Miguel in 2014. Continuing on the narrative
that focused on how a typical Filipino family
perseveres, we released “sequels” in 2015
touching on themes that resonated with many
of our core drinkers.

New and innovative ways to enjoy our
products also helped generate consumption.
Roving bartenders onboard our “Gin on
the Go” trucks served hand-crafted mixes
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Ginebra San Miguel Inc. continues to strive
to strengthen and expand its business. With
a more synergistic
inspiring ad campaigns that speak to an entirely
new generation of consumers, and significant

approach, creative and

iImprovements in operational execution, we
are steadily gaining on the majority of our key
performance metrics.

for consumers at popular food joints. Vino
Kulafu capitalized on the trend for drink
mixes, drawing in drinkers with its “Kul-mix”
concoctions.

Last year, we relaunched a newly reformu-
lated GSM Blue. The update is an example of
how the brand keeps up with the evolving
lifestyles and preferences of young drinkers.

As a result of these efforts, our 2015 volumes
improved 4 percent over the previous
year, boosting our revenues 11 percent to
P16.6 billion.

Our margins remained relatively healthy
despite higher taxes resulting from the ad
valorem portion of the excise tax, and higher
cost of molasses. To mitigate the effect of
rising costs, we looked for new sources of raw
materials—specifically alcohol—and worked
toward achieving greater efficiencies in
our distillery operations. More accurate
forecasting of bottle requirements also
yielded favorable prices for brand new and
secondhand bottles.

On account of improvements in volume
and operations, Income from Continuing
Operations reached P146 million, a reversal
of the P54 million loss incurred the prior year.
Notwithstanding improved operating results,
a net loss of P386 million was still posted due
to the recognition of deferred income taxes
incurred in 2012.

By any measure, 2015 was a terrific year for
our company. The years of decline may well
have bottomed out and GSMI’s strategy of
focusing on execution and the strength of
our core brand are starting to pay dividends.
While we are already recognized as the maker

of the world’s largest selling gin, we intend
to capitalize on opportunities to grow our
international clientele with a full range of
world-class products.

Business, expectedly, will be tougher this
year, given the new round of tax increases,
mounting competition, and the higher raw
material and packaging costs. But we are
confident that we have put in place a clear and
sound strategy that will allow us to rise above
these challenges.

As always we thank you, our valued
shareholders, for the steadfast belief and
unwavering support.

EDUARDO M. COJUANGCO, JR.
Chairman & CEO

W

BERNARD D. MARQUEZ

President

ERE
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TOGETHER
WE CELEBRATE

shared, and to be enjoyed with friends.
Very rarely that one finds a Pinoy
drinking alone.

For Filipinos, drinks are meant to be

Those who happen to chance upon a drinking
cligue will almost always get invited with
“tagay”, an invitation to join even for just a
swig. One glass is used by everyone in the
spirit of sharing and equality.

“Tagay” is a Filipino drinking culture that
our flagship brand Ginebra San Miguel has
cultivated for the past nine generations.

It is in continuing this unique Filipino
drinking culture and tradition that GSMI
creates marketing activations and events
that are geared towards promoting “tagay”
and its values of camaraderie, friendship and
togetherness.

Truly, at GSMI, we believe in celebrating life
together.

For more than 180 years, Ginebra San Miguel
has dominated the hard liquor industry,
and has become part of Filipino culture and
legacy.

Strong brand recognition is only one element
of Ginebra San Miguel’s success story. But to
overcome the odds and come out victorious
every time takes hard work, big ideas, precise
timing and a bit of luck. The brand name is just
a starting point. One needs to have a new story
to tell to consumers, a story that people care
about, a story that brings all of us together.

In 2015, Ginebra San Miguel pushed an
advocacy that means a lot for Pinoys with the
follow-up campaign to “Ganado sa Buhay”. The
advertisement paid tribute to hardworking
fathers, the Filipino families’ true heroes who
never back down from the challenges of a
workday. Of course, it has already become
customary to offer a toast with Ginebra San
Miguel, to celebrate their success.



The “Ganado Sa Buhay” advertising campaign,
along with the various sales and marketing
events and activations, brought together
the consumers and the brands, creating a
closer bond between the two, and immersing
consumers in memorable experiences. These
efforts further pushed Ginebra San Miguel to
a notable performance last year, as it remains
as the volume driver for GSMI’s total sales.

Below-the-line campaigns led by the annual
Ginumanfest, capitalized on the flagship
brand’s equity and in turn, was extended to
GSMTI’s other brands that needed extra push
and public exposure.

Last year’s annual Ginumanfest summer
launch sizzled with appearances and
performances from 2015 Ginebra San
Miguel Calendar Girl Ellen Adarna and
other brand ambassadors Jhong Hilario,
Callalily, Rocksteddy, Banda ni Kleggy and
Itchyworms.

Ginebra San Miguel Premium Gin, GSM Blue,
GSM Blue Flavors and Primera Light Brandy
were also propelled forward as promotions
focused on improved product quality and
unique user experience.

Our brands provided consumers with
memorable events and engagements that
created not only a closer bond between the
two, but also made it standout from the
clutter of competition.

The launch of the new GSM Blue, its
reformulated taste and aroma, plus its new
label, aims to cater to the ever-changing
lifestyles and preferences of entry-level
drinkers. GSM Blue embarked on a Blue
Invasion to further promote the product,
and toured the most happening bars and
restaurants in the country with top bands
and brand ambassadors Callalily and
Itchyworms. Primera Light Brandy also
hit the road with its own concert series at
various tourist draws such as Kadayawan
Festival in Davao City and Higantes Festival
in Angono, Rizal.

GSMTI's other heritage brand, Vino Kulafu,
maximized its affiliation to the Pacquiao
biopic “Kid Kulafu” through merchandising,
while Vino Kulafu “Kul-Mix,” a collection of
concoctions using the popular Chinese wine,
was launched to attract entry level drinkers in
Visayas and Mindanao.

As a way of giving back to the millions of
loyal kabarangay, GSMI's Christmas promo
“Milyun-Milyong Ganado Caps and Selyo
Raffle Promo” gave away millions of pesos
in exciting prizes. Vilma Reyes, a 43-year-
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GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC.

old banana cue vendor from Lucena City
who won the one-million-peso grand prize,
planned to invest the money in growing her
small business.

While GSMI has kept tried and tested
marketing and promotional efforts, it has
also begun executing experiential marketing
campaigns as virality gained influence. These
campaigns helped our brands to become
relevant and formed a connection with a
new breed of consumers, those who crave for
what’s new, trendy and what gets more “likes”
online.

The first #WorldGinDayPH celebration
was headlined by a grand fans day for all
the die-hard kabarangay that was held
simultaneously in three different venues—
Bellagio Square in Manila, Obeertime in
Makati and Quattro in Quezon City. Ginebra
San Miguel was also featured as the “Drink of
the Month” at selected bars and restaurants
in Metro Manila. At the same time, the
Ginebra San Miguel Premium Gin Journey
kicked off during the World Gin Day, sharing
“tagay” to the British Chamber of Commerce
and American Chamber of Commerce.

Another show of strong consumer
engagement and product innovation was the

The launch of new and innovative offerings such as the
Ginebra San Miguel Gin Truck, Premium Gin’s handcrafted
cocktails and Vino Kulafu's Kul-Mix continues to make our
heritage brands relevant to consumers.

launch of Ginebra San Miguel “Gin on the Go”,
an innovative concept that was an instant
hit among this generation of party goers and
mixed drink aficionados. The Instagram-
worthy brown “vintage” truck outfitted with a
back bar, bar wells and a mini-kitchen, toured
the hottest weekend food bazaars and holes
in the wall around the Metro offering gin-
based cocktail drinks artfully crafted by the
country’s top mixologists and bartenders.

To create further buzz for the brands on
social media, actress/model and social media
infuencer Arci Munoz was tapped as Ginebra
San Miguel calendar girl for 2016. Arci joined
the ranks of popular beauty queens, models
and actresses who have graced the brand'’s
calendars. Ginebra San Miguel also introduced
a different twist to its annual calendar
promotions offering consumers and collectors
alike, alimited edition magazine calendar with
coupons that can be exchanged for products or
premium merchandise items.

Inevery “tagay” that we share, GSMI continues
to evolve with a promise of more exciting
things to come — more innovative products
and more ways to enjoy them. As we look
forward, we envision to set ablaze new trails
as we continue our journey to more successes,
together.
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GROWING THE
BUSINESS TOGETHER

us together and carry us through trying times. Such is the essence of the partnership

Business may rise and fall as markets evolve, but it's the bonds we make in life that hold

formed with our loyal dealers who have remained steadfast in their commitment to
constantly support Ginebra San Miguel. They continue to be the major pillar of our success,

as well as the driving force that propels our future.

Teresita Lim Yuen

There seems to be no sign that Teresita Lim Yuen of
TLY & Sonsis slowing down. For 55 years, the company
has championed the brand Ginebra, and it would seem
half a century isn't enough to call it a day for the 92-
year old matriarch of the business. The nonagenarian
remains active in the day-to-day operations of the
company, ensuring everything is done in order.
GSMI's oldest dealer takes its name from Teresita’s
late husband Domingo Lim Yuen, who first opened
the business in 1960 in Isabela. Back then, you could
buy Ginebra by the shot or “takal” at five centavos,
and people would pass by the store before going to
work in the morning for a shot, and take another shot
before going home. They started with 8,000 cases
the first year, but with the Yuens' entrepreneurial
skills and popularity of the brand, volume has grown
substantially in the following decades since. While
the brand’s popularity certainly helped her business
grow, Teresita, fondly called Mommy Terry by many,
believes that her hands-on approach and sincerity and
fairness in dealing with customers played a big part
in her success. She believes that mutual respect and
understanding between her and the customers are
key. “They are always happy to see me. It is important
that customers know you personally,” says Mommy
Terry. “If they know you, they will sell your products.”
With the help of her family, now second and third
generation GSMI dealers, Mommy Terry makes sure
she takes good care of what her husband started years
ago. “My husband would always tell me to be loyal
and to always stick to our word of honor. Whatever
the agreement is with Ginebra, it should be followed,’
shares Mommy Terry. Amidst challenges, the family-
owned business has stayed the course by focusing
on gin. “We really concentrated on it as our main
product. For our area, it has always been gin. So when
competition came in, we weren't really that much
affected,” she added. This longstanding partnership
has benefitted both parties, and continues to grow
stronger than ever. “For us, it’s not just a product, it’s
not just a business—it's who we are. It's our identity.
TLY is synonymous to Ginebra San Miguel”

With the help of her family,
now second and third
generation GSMI dealers,
Mommy Terry makes sure
she takes good care of
what her husband started

years ago.
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Ephraim Lim

Relationship with Ginebra has been very good for new dealer Ephraim Lim.
Jimjim, as he is often called by peers, entered into distributorship with the
company in 2013. It was a time when the gin business was experiencing
tough competition. But despite Ginebra’s performance that year, the owner
of ELIM Agricultural Supply never doubted the partnership’s capacity to
grow. And it is this same belief in the company that made Jimjim hold
on through the challenging years. He attributes this to the give-and-take
relationship that has always been the business culture not just in Ginebra,
but with the whole San Miguel family. “People at San Miguel are very
professional. They understand our problems. Sometimes, they’ll ask me to
innovate and do things in a certain way, and I'll try it. It usually comes out
successful. Their programs are very good, very friendly to distributors”
Fate brought Jimjim and San Miguel together when the former’s copra
business wasn't doing so good, and since he had so many bodegas, SMC
decided to rent them out. “Their program was to go into distributorship. So
it was me they asked first. And because I was already handling the bodega,
it was easier on my part.” Initially, Jimjim was simply dealing B-Meg feeds,
but this partnership would soon develop into a relationship of trust and
mutual respect as he began to distribute all of San Miguel’s products,
beginning with Magnolia chicken in the 1970’s and later on San Miguel
Beer, Monterey, and then SMC-owned Coca-Cola. “I trust San Miguel so
much. I distribute all their products so it’s natural for me to accept any
offer from them,” shares Jimjim. “We've had offers of higher rates but how
can we accept when we really don’'t know the company. SMC understands
us, so I never had second thoughts about doing business with them.”

Ferdinand Uy

It is Ferdinand’s “Boyet” Uy’s positive attitude that has kept Asia Gold
Trading of Cagayan firm in their support of GSMI. The Uy’s are involved
in other businesses, such as a hotel, gas station, and another dealership
with sister company San Miguel Brewery Inc. In 2002, the Uys started
selling Ginebra San Miguel products, a partnership that has proven to be
most rewarding as they now rank Top 1 dealer in North Luzon and Top 5
dealer in the country. For the past 15 years, despite the challenges faced
from competition, they remained loyal in supporting Ginebra San Miguel
products. “We have a very good working relationship with GSMI. They
continue to support us with timely and effective promotions to increase
sales,” says Boyet. “In return, we implement all their strategies and sell
their products to the best of our abilities. It's a win-win relationship
with the GSMI team.” A father of four daughters, his eldest Nikki is now
very hands on with the business. Even during the challenging years of
the past, Boyet never doubted Ginebra's ability to bounce back stronger.
“We thought positively and exercised patience. We believed Ginebra
will bounce back again. Of course, we also supported it with hard work.
We believe in the never-say-die spirit of Ginebra San Miguel. We were
once the market leader, and we can be number 1 again.” Boyet believes
that as long as he is here to support Ginebra, he knows the company in
turn would always be there to protect his interest and increase his sales.
“We are very optimistic of our future relationship with GSMI. With
mutual trust and support, this relationship is sure to further strengthen
the business”




GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL PORTFOLIO

Made from sugarcane alcohol

and selected imported essences.

The icon of Philippine drinking 0 F B EV E RAG E S
culture continues to be the no. 1

selling gin in the world.

MANILA SUNRISE

30 ml Ginebra San Miguel
15 ml coffee liqueur
90 ml orange juice

Pour 30 ml of Ginebra San Miguel
in a glass. Add 15 ml coffee liqueur
and 90 ml orange juice. Stir well
and serve.

Y
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ANTONOV VODKA
Fermented from sugarcane,
quadruple distilled and charcoal
filtered. The neutral taste and
aroma of Antonov Vodka makes
it great to drink neat or mixed.

[
| =

COSMOPOLITAN

30 ml Antonov Vodka
15 ml orange liqueur
15 ml lime juice

30 ml cranberry juice

Mix 30 ml Antonov Vodka,

15 ml orange liqueur, 15 ml lime
juice, and 30 ml cranberry juice
in a glass. Stir and serve.

TONDENA MANILA RUM

The leading export product that is made

with select sugarcane alcohol and aged

in oak barrels. Tondefia Manila Rum

comes in three exquisite variants.

. r Dark, full-flavored and heavy-bodied

3 ""‘.*—- F ; rum. Gold, classic medium-bodied rum.

J ?" Silver, milder flavor and lighter body.
= il

TONDE]




GSM BLUE FLAVORS

A perfect mix of clear spirit and flavors
with an extra light alcohol content.
Enjoy it in Mojito and Brown Coffee
variants. Drink it neat, chilled or mixed.

MOJITO SLUSH

60 ml GSM Blue Mojito

90 ml lemon soda

1 teaspoon granulated sugar
2 pieces lime cubes

1 sprig of mint leaves

Muddle together a teaspoon of granulated
sugar and 2 pieces of lime cubes in a glass.
Add 60 ml GSM Blue Mojito, 90 ml lemon
soda and a sprig of mint leaves. Stir and enjoy.
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GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL PREMIUM GIN

With just the right kick of alcohol, the
exquisite blend of extracts of botanicals and
juniper berries blended with ENA (Extra
Neutral Alcohol) gives Ginebra San Miguel
Premium Gin a smooth, clean and crisp taste.

SWEET LEMONY MARTINI

30 ml Ginebra San Miguel Premium Gin
15 ml freshly squeezed lemon juice
30 ml sugar syrup

Mix 30 ml of Ginebra San Miguel
Premium Gin with 15 ml of fresh lemon
juice and 30 ml of sugar syrup in a glass.
Stir well and serve.
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GSM BLUE

The quintessential drink of the youth,
GSM Blue is blended with essences of
juniper berries and other botanicals ideal
for mixed drinking.

BLUE ROYAL Fl1ZZ

45 ml GSM Blue

15 ml Créme de Cassis
60 ml orange juice

30 ml lemon soda

Mix together 45 ml of GSM Blue, 15 ml
of Créme de Cassis, 60 ml of orange juice,
and 30 ml of lemon soda in a glass.

Stir well and serve.
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PRIMERA LIGHT BRANDY
Made from choice grape alcohol
that is aged longer, Primera Light
Brandy is made smoother with

the breakthrough Premium
Smooth Blend process. Its rich and
flavorful taste is best served neat
or on the rocks.

VINO KULAFU

The Philippines’ best-selling Chinese
wine, popular for its 12 authentic Chinese
botanical herbs and health benefits. Drink
neat or mixed.

CITRUS SPICE

30 ml Vino Kulafu

1 teaspoon granulated sugar
60 ml lemon soda

% teaspoon grated ginger

Blend together 30 ml Vino Kulafu with 1
teaspoon granulated sugar, 60 ml lemon
soda and % teaspoon of grated ginger in a
glass. Mix well then serve.
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Beneficiaries from NCR Cherry Galit and
John Louie Ferrer during a flairtending
enhancement workshop.

BUILDING A BETTER
FUTURE TOGETHER

GSMI is committed to making a real difference to its communities

through its corporate social responsibility (CSR) efforts.

ur thrust is to provide opportunities
Ofor people to realize their potential and

empower them to improve their lives. To
enable them to feel as we do: “ganado sa buhay”.

Now on its second year, the Ginebra-TESDA
Technopreneurship Program, launched during
our 180th anniversary celebration, continues to
help young people who want to make their mark
in the service industry or become entrepreneurs
in their own right.

Thus far, beneficiaries from eight different
regions have graduated from the program. Apart
from bartending and mixing skills, they were also
taught Basic Entrepreneurship, so they can run
their own mobile bar. The project is the first-of-
its-kind at TESDA, because it not only provides
training for beneficiaries, but also a means of
livelihood. The program has since become a
model for other private companies.

As business partners, GSMI continuously
provides beneficiaries with mixology training
sessions and bar operations seminars to assist
them in running their businesses. For better
appreciation of the business, its operations and
products, beneficiaries are also given tours of
GSMTI'’s plants.

Success stories abound, as about 90 percent of
the graduates have found a source of livelihood,
with most running their own mobile bars, and
others gaining employment. The new mobile bar
operators have posted an estimated one million
pesos in earnings for 2015.

Changing lives

Cherry Galit and John Louie Ferrer are from the
NCR group of beneficiaries. Cherry was taking
up Food and Beverage Service at the TESDA
Women's Center, while John was taking up a
similar vocational course, when they applied



for the program. Today, with their own mobile
bar business, they proudly count themselves
as entrepreneurs. They utilize social media to
continuously expand their mobile bar clientele.
Cherry is confident that they can grow the
business. Compared to her old job as service
crew for a fast-food restaurant, the business,
she says, is more financially rewarding.
“Nakakatulong ito sa pagpapagamot sa mother
ko na may sakit,’ she adds.

“Hindi lang kami kumikita, inspired kami to work
harder para palakihin ito. Gusto namin makaipon
para hindi na kami maging empleyado. Gusto
namin magkaroon pa ng ibang mobile bar hindi
lang isa o dalawa, o tatlo, o lima,” John smiles.

Grace Pones, a single mom from Biliran, once
had to leave her daughter behind for four years
to work as a baby sitter in the Middle East. She’s
had more time to spend with her daughter since
her group put up a bar called GSMI in their
municipality.

“In the beginning, I had to explain to them
why we have to work hard to establish ‘yung
business,” says Grace, who stands as the group’s
mother hen. “Sabi ko, kung naka-istambay lang
sila, kailangan pa nila humingi pati pang-load sa
mga nanay nila.” Now, she divides their earnings
weekly, and the members of her group have
become self-sufficient. Her group also caters to
various events in their province, “malalaking
handaan, mga debut at saka piyesta. We offer
drinks towers and special cocktails for the VIP
guests,’ she remarks proudly.

Today, her group is eyeing a location near the
seaside to put up their bar business. “Hindi ko
iniisip dati na magagawa ko ito, na ako naman
ang boss,” she grins.

Rocky Cecogo of Eastern Samar was a high
school scholar who did a lot of odd jobs (catering
assistant, landscaper, floral decorator) to earn
extra cash. Even when he was already able to
earn some money, his dream was always to finish
college someday.

“Iniisip ko kasi, oo may kinikita ako ngayon, pero
ano na ang pangtustos ko bukas? May kasabihan
kami sa amin na ang edukasyon ang susi na
makakapagpalaya sa mga mahihirap na tao at
makakapagbigay ng maginhawang buhay para
sa lahat,” he confidently replies.
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products.

This was why he and his groupmates
enthusiastically signed up for the program. Out
of all mobile bar recepients, their group is now
the top performer.

“Tinatanong kami ng mga tao kung bakit Ginebra
San Miguel ang ginagamit namin. Sinasagot ko
na ang GSM is world-class at high-quality. Dapat
tangkilikin natin ang ating sariling produkto,” he
explains.

They have had 30 events so far. “Malaki ang
kinikita namin dito. Sa isang event umaabot
kami ng P1,000 na kita each, samantalang nung
namasukan ako as crew sa burger shop, P250
lang ang sweldo ko

He reveals that a portion of his earnings goes to
his parents for their daily needs and towards the
studies of his three siblings. He is also saving up
for college. They plan to set up a permanent bar
in the future. “Napakalaking pasasalamat ko sa
GSMI for this opportunity. Kung hindi dahil dito,
wala kaming sariling negosyo, napagkakakitaan
at additional knowledge na naa-apply namin sa
aming buhay”

4 -
% L
i
Grace Pones, a beneficiary
from Biliran province,

prepares a cocktail mix
using GSM Blue.

Rocky Cecogo of
Eastern Samar joined
the tour at the GSMI
Cabuyao Plant in
Laguna for better
appreciation of the
business and its
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CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance refers to the framework of rules, systems, and processes of a corporation that governs
the performance of the Board of Directors and Management of their respective duties and responsibilities to
the corporation’s stockholders and other stakeholders which include, among others, customers, employees,
suppliers, financiers, government, and the community in which it operates. Recognizing that good corporate
governance plays a vital role in creating and sustaining shareholder value, Ginebra San Miguel Inc. (the
“Company”), on August 6, 2002, institutionalized the principles of good corporate governance in the
entire organization by establishing and implementing a Manual on Corporate Governance (the “Manual”).
The Company’s Board of Directors, Management, Officers, employees, and shareholders believe that
corporate governance is a necessary component of what constitutes sound strategic business management.
Accordingly, the Company continuously exerts effort to make the organization aware of good corporate
governance practices.

Ensuring that the Manual is current and consistent with prevailing issuances, rules and circulars
(collectively, the “Rules”) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC"), the Company amended the
Manual twice in 2014 to align the provisions thereof with the SEC Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”)isaware that compliance with the principles of good corporate
governance starts with the Board. The Board believes that a director’s office is one of trust and confidence
and that it is incumbent upon each of the directors to act in a manner characterized by transparency,
accountability and fairness, and for the best interest of the Company. Bearing these in mind, the Board
exercises leadership, prudence, and integrity in leading the Company towards sustained progress.

The Board is responsible for fostering the long-term success of the Company and ensuring its sustained
competitiveness in a manner consistent with its fiduciary responsibility, which it shall exercise in the best
interest of the Company, its stockholders, and other stakeholders. The Board is likewise responsible for
formulating the Company’s vision, mission, strategic objectives, policies and procedures that shall guide its
activities, including the means to effectively monitor Management’s performance.

Committed to good corporate governance practice and to keep themselves updated on the relevant laws,
rules, regulations, circulars and issuances of regulatory bodies, all incumbent directors attended a Corporate
Governance Seminar conducted on September 24, October 20, November 11, and December 4, 2015 by Risks,
Opportunities, Assessment and Management, Inc., a SEC-accredited provider.

Board Composition

The Board of the Company is composed of nine (9) directors, each elected annually by the stockholders
during the Regular Stockholders’ Meeting ("/RSM”). The directors hold office until the next annual election
and until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Independent Directors. The Company has two (2) Independent Directors (ID), who, apart from their fees and
shareholdings, have no business or relationship with the Company, which could, or could reasonably be
perceived to, materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment in carrying out their
responsibilities as directors. The incumbent Independent Directors of the Company are Minita V. Chico-
Nazario and Francisco H. Villaruz, Jr., who were elected by the stockholders during the 2015 RSM of the
Company on May 28, 2015. This is in compliance with Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code (“SRC”)
and Article 3(A) of SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2009.

Chairman and President. The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Eduardo M. Cojuangco,
Jr., while Mr. Bernard D. Marquez is the President. Two (2) separate individuals hold these positions with
their respective roles clearly defined to ensure independence, accountability, and responsibility in the
discharge of their respective duties.
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Board Committees

To aid the Board in complying with the principles of good corporate governance, the Board constituted
four (4) committees, namely: 1) Executive Committee; 2) Nomination and Hearing Committee; 3) Executive
Compensation Committee; and 4) Audit Committee. In order to further clarify and expound on the role,
authority, duties and responsibilities of the Board Committees, each of the Committees, with the exception
of the Executive Committee, has approved and adopted their respective charters. The Audit Committee
Charter was approved on November 9, 2012 while the respective Charters of the Nomination and Hearing

Committee and Executive Compensation Committee were approved on November 7, 2013.

The following are the members of the Board Committees:

Members

Eduardo M. Cojuangco, Jr. (Chairman)

Ramon S. Ang

Bernard D. Marquez

Francisco S. Alejo III

Ferdinand K. Constantino (Non-Director Member)

Members

Leo S. Alvez (Chairman)

Bernard D. Marquez

Gabiriel S. Claudio

Francisco H. Villaruz, Jr. (ID)

Mario K. Surio

Casiano B. Cabalan, Jr. (Ex Officio Member)

MEMBERS

Ramon S. Ang (Chairman)

Bernard D. Marquez

Leo S. Alvez

Minita V. Chico-Nazario (ID)

Ferdinand K. Constantino (Non-Director Member)

Members

Minita V. Chico-Nazario (ID and Chairperson)
Leo S. Alvez

Francisco S. Alejo III

Francisco H. Villaruz, Jr. (ID)

Ferdinand K. Constantino (Non-Director Member)

Role

The Committee acts within the power and
authority granted upon it by the Board
and is called upon when the Board is not in
session to exercise the powers of the latter in
the management of the Company, except as
specifically limited by the Board or by law.

Role

The Committee, among others, pre-screens and
shortlists candidates for nomination to become
a member of the Board in accordance with the
qualifications and disqualifications for directors
set out in the Amended Articles of Incorporation
(“Articles”) and By-Laws, Manual, as well as
applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
the issuances of the SEC.

Role

The Committee advises the Board on the
establishment of formal and transparent policies
and practices on remuneration of directors and
executives and provides oversight function
over remuneration of senior management and
other key personnel, ensuring consistency with
the Company’s culture, strategy, and control
environment.

Role

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling
its oversight responsibility on the Company’s
corporate governance processes relating to
financial statements and financial reporting
process, risk management, internal control
system, audit processes, and compliance with
accounting standards, legal, and regulatory
requirements.
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Performance of the Board and the Committees

Board Performance

In order to accomplish its duties and responsibilities, the Board holds regular meetings during the year.
The Corporate Secretary sends notices and provides the members of the agenda and other necessary
information to enable the directors to discuss and arrive at intelligent decisions on matters requiring
Board approval.

In 2015, the Board had four (4) regular meetings and one (1) organizational meeting. The members of the
Board also attended the 2015 RSM.

The Board has implemented an annual internal self-rating system since its adoption on November 8, 2011,
in order to assess and improve the performance of the Board in accordance with the best practices in
corporate governance and the effectiveness of the Company’s governance process. The said system covers
four (4) broad areas of Board performance, namely: Fulfillment of the Board’s Key Responsibilities; Board-
Management Relationship; Effectiveness of Board Processes and Meetings; and Individual Performance of
Board Members.

The details relative to the attendance of directors in Board meetings and RSM in 2015 are shown in the table
below.

BOARD MEETINGS IN 2015 RSM

DIRECTORS MAR 25 MAY 11 MAY 28 AUG 6 NOV 9 MAY 28
Eduardo M. Cojuangco, Jr. Present Present Present Present Present Present
Ramon S. Ang Present Present Present Present Present Present
Bernard D. Marquez Present Present Present Present Present Present
Francisco S. Alejo III N/A* N/A* Present Present Present N/A*
Leo S. Alvez Present Present Present Present Present Present
Gabriel S. Claudio Present Present Present Present Present Present
Mario K. Surio N/A* N/A* Present Present Present N/A*
Minita V. Chico-Nazario Present Present N/A* Present Present Absent
Francisco H. Villaruz, Jr. Present Present Present Present Present Present

*N/A means “Not Applicable” since they were only elected during the 2015 RSM.

Board Committee Performance

The Nomination and Hearing Committee and Audit Committee were the only committees that held meetings
in 2015. The Nomination and Hearing Committee convened on March 25, 2015 and all the members were
present to discuss and evaluate the qualifications of the nominees for the Board of Directors of the Company
for 2015. The Audit Committee held meetings to, among others, review and approve the Company’s 2014
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, as well as the Company’s unaudited financial statements for the
first three (3) quarters of 2015.

The details of the attendance of the directors in the Audit Committee meetings in 2015 are shown below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS IN 2015

MEMBERS MAR 25 MAY 11 AUG 6 NOV 9
Minita V. Chico-Nazario Present Present Present Present
Ferdinand K. Constantino Present Present Present Present
Leo S. Alvez Present Present Present Present
Francisco H. Villaruz, Jr. Present Present Present Present
Francisco S. Alejo III N/A* N/A* Present Present

*N/A means “Not Applicable” since Mr. Alejo was elected only during the 2015 RSM.



20

GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC.

Board Remuneration
In 2015, each director received a per diem of Ten Thousand Pesos (P10,000.00) per attendance at Board and
Committee meetings of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee performs oversight functions to both external and internal auditors.
The role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are clearly defined in the Company’s Manual and Audit
Committee Charter.

External Auditor. The External Auditor, whose main function is to facilitate an environment of good
corporate governance as reflected in the Company’s financial records and reports, is selected and appointed
by the stockholders upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee. In instances when the External
Auditor suspects fraud or error during its conduct of audit, it is required to disclose and express its findings
on the matter.

From 2006 up to the present, the accounting firm of R.G. Manabat & Co. (formerly Manabat Sanagustin
& Co., CPAs) has been the Company’s External Auditor. Compliant with Part I(3) (b) (ix) of SRC Rule 68, as
amended, with respect to the re-engagement of the said audit firm, the Company consistently observes
the rule on rotation for the signing partner every after five (5) years. Representatives of the audit firm
were present and available at the 2015 RSM, to respond to appropriate questions and were given an
opportunity to make a statement, if they so desire.

Fees for the services rendered by the external auditor to the Company and its subsidiaries in connection with
the Company’s annual financial statements and other statutory and regulatory filings for 2015 amounted to
about Seven Million Pesos (P7,000,000.00).

Internal Auditor. The Company maintains an internal auditing department known as the Ginebra San
Miguel Group Audit (“GSM Group Audit”), in order to review and evaluate its Philippine and international
operations, including those of its subsidiaries. The GSM Group Audit has its own Internal Audit Charter
which sets forth the policy, purpose, scope of work, responsibility and authority, independence, and
standards of audit practice. Consistent with its charter, the said group provides an independent and
objective assurance that the risk management, control, and governance processes of the Company
and its subsidiaries are adequate and functioning. It is also responsible for identifying and evaluating
significant risk exposures of the Company and contributes to the improvement of risk management
and control systems by assessing adequacy and effectiveness of controls covering the organization’s
governance, operations, and information systems.

Regular audits of the businesses of the Company, its subsidiaries, and support units are conducted according
to an annual audit program prepared by GSM Group Audit and approved by the Audit Committee. Special
audits are also undertaken, whenever and as necessary.

The GSM Group Audit is guided by the International Standards on Professional Practice of Internal
Accounting. It functionally reports directly to the Audit Committee.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

The Company believes that it is only through full disclosure and transparency that will enable the
investment community to appreciate the Company’s true business and financial condition, as well as the
quality of its corporate governance. Thus, as and whenever necessary, the Company files the mandatory
reports and disclosures to the regulatory bodies, which documents are uploaded in the Company’s website.

Ownership Structure

The top twenty (20) common and preferred stockholders of the Company, including the shareholdings of
certain record and beneficial owners who own more than five percent (5%) of its capital stock, its directors,
and senior executive officers, are disclosed annually in its Information Statement (“IS”), which is distributed
to the stockholders prior to the RSM.

Financial Reporting
The Company regularly informs the investing public on its operating performance and financial
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information through the timely submission of its disclosures and reportorial requirements with the
SEC and the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”). As may be necessary, it also discloses with the SEC
and PSE such other major and market-sensitive information that affect share price performance.

The Company’s financial statements conform to Philippine Accounting Standards and Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards, which are all in compliance with International Accounting Standards. The Company’s
quarterly financial results for the first three (3) quarters of the relevant year, as well as the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the latest completed financial year, which form part of the IS
distributed to the stockholders, are released and are duly disclosed to the SEC and PSE within the prescribed
period. The financial results are also presented to financial and investment analysts through the quarterly
Investors’ Briefing.

Securities Dealing

Committed to the highest standards of values, expertise, and professionalism, the Company has adopted a
Policy on Dealings in Securities to comply with international best practices in corporate governance. The
policy sets out the conditions and rules under which the directors, officers, and employees of the GSMI Group
shall deal in securities of the Company. Under this policy, the directors, officers, and certain employees
are considered to have access to “insider information” i.e. knowledge or possession of material non-public
information about the Company by virtue of their functions and responsibilities. As such, these employees
are prohibited from dealing in any of the Company’s securities at any time when they have knowledge or
possession of “insider information” and during a specified time frame or “blackout period”.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions of the Company are made in the ordinary course of business, on an arms-
length basis and at market rates. An assessment is undertaken at each fiscal year by examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Moreover, consistent with
the requirement in the Company’s Manual that all material information, i.e., anything that could potentially
affect share price, shall be publicly disclosed, related party transactions are fully disclosed in the Company’s
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

STOCKHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS

Stockholders’ Meeting

Stockholders shall be encouraged to personally attend the RSM. If they cannot attend, they shall be apprised
ahead of time of their right to appoint a proxy. Stockholders are informed of the RSM at least fifteen (15)
business days before the scheduled date of the meeting. The Notice to Stockholders (“Notice”) sets the date,
time, venue, and agenda of the meeting. It also contains information pertaining to proxies: the required
document to submit, deadline for submission thereof, and date of their validation. The Notice for the 2015
RSM was approximately sent to the stockholders on May 7, 2015.

Voting Rights and Voting Procedures

Each share, whether common or preferred, registered in the name of the stockholder entitles such
stockholder to one (1) vote, which may be exercised in person or by proxy at the stockholders’ meetings,
including the RSM. Stockholders have the right to elect, remove, and replace directors as well as vote on
certain corporate acts in accordance with the Corporation Code. In electing members to the Board, every
stockholder is entitled to cumulate his/her/its votes in accordance with the provisions of law. Voting
procedures on matters presented for approval to the stockholders in the RSM are set out in the IS.

Pre-emptive Rights

All shareholders shall have pre-emptive rights; they shall have the right to subscribe to all issues of shares of
the Company in proportion to their shareholdings, unless the same isdenied in the Articles or an amendment
thereto.

Under the Company'’s Articles, stockholders do not have pre-emptive rights to subscribe to the convertible
preferred shares or to subscribe to the common shares to be issued by the Company upon conversion of the
preferred shares and the conversion of any notes issued to redeem such preferred shares. Subject to certain
conditions and threshold on the percentage of shares allotted to be issued pursuant to a duly approved stock
option, stock purchase, stock subscription or similar plans (collectively, the “Plans”), stockholders do not have
pre-emptive rights to shares issued, sold or disposed of by the Company to its officers and/or employees
pursuant to such Plans.
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Right to Information of Stakeholders and Investor Relations

The Company exercises transparency when dealing with stockholders, customers, employees, and trade
partners, and ensures that these transactions adhere to industry standards and fair business practices
in order to establish long-term and mutually beneficial relationships. Stakeholders can access important
information about the Company, including its reportorial filings with the SEC and PSE, by visiting the
Company’s website, http://www.ginebrasanmiguel.com.

Stakeholders are provided hard copies, through the Investor Relations Office of the Company and its parent
company, San Miguel Corporation, of disclosures, announcements, and upon request, with periodic reports
filed with the SEC and PSE.

The Company addresses the information requests of the investing community and keeps in touch with
minority stockholders through timely disclosures to the SEC and PSE, regular quarterly Investors’ Briefings,
RSM, Company website, emails, and telephone calls.

The Company also holds combined Investors’ Briefings with SMC and other SMC subsidiaries and regularly
meets with investment and financial analysts.

The shareholders of the Company shall be provided, upon request, with periodic reports which disclose
relevant personal and professional information about the directors, officers, and certain other matters such
as their shareholdings in the Company, dealings with the Company, relationships among directors and key
officers, and the aggregate compensation of directors and Officers.

Dividends

Holders of common shares are entitled to receive dividends as the Board may, in its sole discretion, declare
from time to time. The Board, however, is required, subject to certain exceptions, to declare dividends when
the Company’s retained earnings equal or exceeds its paid-up capital stock. Holders of preferred shares are
entitled to participate and receive dividends as and when declared by the Board to common stockholders
as such rate or amount as may be fixed by the Board. Such right to receive dividends may be cumulative.
No dividends were declared in 2015.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

“Respect for our People” is one of the Company’s corporate values. The Company believes that its people are
its strength. In line with this, the Company ensures compliance with general labor standards, inclusive of
occupational health and safety standards in the workplace.

The Company is committed to maintain a work environment that encourages trust, openness and mutual
respect, regardless of rank or title and promotes a healthy work-life balance. It is also the Company’s policy
to promote career advancement and development through the numerous training programs and seminars
implemented by and/or facilitated by the Company’s Human Resources Department. The Company has also
launched an Employee Education Program (EDPRO) which supports employee efforts on continuouslearning
and self-improvement. Subject to certain conditions, the Company through the EDPRO may subsidize the
educational expenses of qualified employees who are pursuing undergraduate, post-graduate or technical-
vocational courses.

Conflict of Interest

The Company implements a policy on Conflict of Interest which espouses the principle that officers and
employees have a duty to act in the best interest of the Company. As such, in the event that any personal
interest of an officer or employee may conflict with the interest of the Company, proper disclosure through
the accomplishment of the Full Business Interest Disclosure Form should be made and a review by higher
Management shall resolve the conflict. This policy specifically requires offices and employees to: conduct
business affairs with fairness; avoid granting undue personal favors; engage only in private activities or
business consistent with responsibilities as officers and employees and not detrimental to the interest of the
Company; refuse gifts that might connote bribery in any way; utilize Company property, funds, equipment,
and time solely for Company purposes, and recognize that all intellectual property and rights so created are
owned by the Company; and seek prior Management clearance before engaging in outside work.
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Code of Ethics

The Company adheres to the SMC group-wide Code of Ethics that sets out the fundamental standards of
conduct and values consistent with the principles of good governance and business practices that shall guide
and define the actions and decisions of the directors, management, officers, and employees of the Company.
The Company is firmly committed to the promotion of a culture that fosters and maintains the core values
of fairness, transparency, accountability, and integrity in the conduct of its business and expects each of its
directors, officers, and employees to observe with zeal such core values in the performance of their duties, in
their relationships with fellow employees and in all their dealings with shareholders, customers, suppliers,
government, and the general public.

Whistle Blowing

Procedures have been established for the communication and investigation of concerns regarding the
Company'’s accounting, internal accounting controls, auditing, and financial reporting matters under a SMC
group-wide Whistle Blowing Policy. The said policy provides that all complaints be ultimately referred
to the Audit Committee, which complaints may be on anonymous basis and which shall be placed in
confidential files and will be retained for seven (7) years or for such longer time as the Audit Committee may
deem necessary. All communications received through the established channels will be kept confidential.
The Audit Committee will determine whether any action or response is necessary or appropriate in respect
of a communication, and it will take or direct such action as it deems appropriate.

COMPLIANCE MONITORING

To ensure adherence to corporate principles and best practices, the Board has appointed a Compliance
Officer who has direct reporting responsibilities to the Chairman of the Board. The Company’s Compliance
Officer is responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of
the Manual, and the rules and regulations of regulatory agencies.

WEBSITE

More detailed information on the Company may be viewed at http://www.ginebrasanmiguel.com.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
For the year ended December 31, 2015

The Company’s Amended Manual on Corporate Governance (the “Manual”) and Audit Committee Charter
(the “Charter”) mandate the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling
its oversight responsibility on the Company’s corporate governance processes relating to financial
statements and financial reporting process, risk management, internal control system, audit processes, and
compliance with accounting standards, legal and regulatory requirements. In compliance with the said
mandate, the Committee performed the following in 2015:

¢ Recommended to the Board of Directors and endorsed for approval by the stockholders, the
appointment of R.G. Manabat & Co., as the Company’s independent external auditor for 2015;

¢ Reviewed and approved the terms of engagement of the external auditor, including the audit, audit-
related and any non-audit services provided by the external auditor to the Company and the fees
for such services, and ensured that the same did not impair the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity;

¢ Reviewed and approved the scope and objective of the audit and audit plans, programs and strategies
of the external auditor as well as the internal audit group of the Company, and have discussed
the results of their respective audit processes and their findings and assessment of the Company’s
internal controls and financial reporting systems;

¢ Reviewed, discussed and recommended for approval of the Board of Directors the Company’s 2015
quarterly financial statements and 2014 parent and consolidated financial statements, and the reports
required to be submitted to regulatory agencies in connection with such consolidated financial
statements, to ensure that the information contained in such statements and reports presents a true
and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position and condition and that such statements
and reports comply with the regulatory requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”);

¢ Studied, approved, adopted and implemented the Audit Committee Self-Assessment Form, which is
intended to assess compliance of the Committee with its Charter, as well as improve performance of
the Committee in accordance with the best practices in corporate governance; and

¢ Reviewed the adequacy, effectiveness and sufficiency of the Company’s financial and internal
controls, risk management systems, and control and governance processes, and ensured that, where

applicable, necessary measures were taken to address any concern or issue arising therefrom.

The Committee exerted best efforts in fulfilling its responsibilities as set forth in the Manual and Charter
and substantially met its mandate in 2015.

/&r;ﬁf /- meﬁ?fiw;f

Minita V. Chico-Nazario

Chairperson
Independent Director
/
Led'S. Alvez ancisco H. Villaruz, Jr
Member Member - Independent Director

Q) parrces gk{

Francisco S. Alejo III Ferdinand K. Constantino
Member Member
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Ginebra San Miguel Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, including the additional components attached therein, in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the same to
the stockholders of the Company.

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the consolidated
financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report
to the stockholders has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such
audit.

Eduardo M Cojuangco, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Cynthia M. Baroy Bernard D. Marquez
" Chief Finance Officer President
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R.G. Manabat & Co. Telephone  +63 (2) 885 7000

The KPMG Center, 9/F Fax +63 (2) 894 1985

6787 Ayala Avenue Internet www.kpmg.com.ph
Makati City 1226, Metro Manila, Philippines E-Mail ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

Branches: Subic « Cebu « Bacolod - lloilo

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ginebra San Miguel Inc.

34and 6" Floor, San Miguel Properties Centre
St. Francis Street, Ortigas Center
Mandaluyong City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ginebra San Miguel Inc. and Subsidiaries, which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated statements
of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Ginebra San Miguel Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

OEL A. BALADIANG

Partner
CPA License No. 106166
SEC Accreditation No. 1473-A, Group A, valid until March 30, 2018
Tax Identification No. 223-804-972
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-33-2014

Issued October 15, 2014; valid until October 14, 2017
PTR No. 5320737MD

Issued January 4, 2016 at Makati City

March 16, 2016
Makati City, Metro Manila
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GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
[In Thousands]
Node 2015 H4
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents A a2 33 P44.5 8] P77
Trade ard ather receivahbles - net 48273 32 33 2802212 393468
Inwentories i F 3050271 2E5TAFT
Prepadd expenses and other current assets 16 38 33 1,569,238 1,545.041
TR¥T A3 8737 533
Ascets hald for sale & - 547 106
Taotal Current Assets ToXr 522 0275129
Moncurrent Asssts
Investments in joint ventures 4. It 524,850 457 488
Property, plant and equipment - et 4 1F B.574 827 B PIs A28
Goodwill o 15 125,853 226 843
Deferred tax assets « 18 810,305 1116000
_Other nencurrent assets - net 4 14, 27 32 33 789,023 825,732
Total Moncurrent Assets 7 EE5.858 B784. 5719
P15753,390 FI8,040,248
LIABILITIES AMD EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Hotes payable I8 32 27 PE.404, 480 P10.384, 440
Trade and abher payables 16 27 32 37 2 236049 2329193
Income and othar taxes pavable 203,068 A0e.50%
Current mafuritbes af bong-terrn debt - net af debt
isspe costs e ) 114,286 114286
Tatal Current Liahilities 11,059 843 12835428
Monoarrent Liabilities
Retirement liahilities ZF b s MBTTE
Long-torm debt - et of current maturitics
and debt fssue costs 17 32 3% 228,571 342857
Total Moncurrent Liabilities 589,800 561,433
Total Liabilities 11447, 463 13,378,061
Equity 17
Capital stock 299,043 0083
Additional paid-in capital L.539 454 2539454
Reserve for retirement plan {263,548) [135,675)
Cumulativee transiation adpistments (79,011) (54 0]
Retalmed earndngs:
Appropsfated 2,300,000 2,500,000
Unapprapriated 1ET7. 7482 20483358
_Treasury sock [2669.973) (2569573
Total Equity 4300727 4542187
P15,753,3%90 P1E040.248

Soe Notes to the Cansalidated Financial Stalermenis
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GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013
{in Thousands, Except Per Share Datal

Mote 2015 o4 iy k)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
SALES 27 PL6SS4541  Pl4F20577  PLIATE9BS

_COST OF SALES 254 12181764 10947315 10735408
GROSS PROFIT 4372777 3573242 2941578
SELLING AND MARKETING EXPEMSES 2 LBaz708) (17594100 {2.116.413)
GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES b= LA92963)  (L562472)  [L45T9TH
INTEREST EXPENSE AND OTHER FINANCING

CHARGES 151725 (4B6,15%) 540,113 657859
EQUITY [N MET LOSSES OF JOINT VENTURES " [109.667) 156.265) {74,763)
INTEREST INCOME a7 29,843 22810 10,544
CGAIN [LOSS) OM SALE OF PROPERTY AND

EQUIPMENT 2 125,589 a0 512
OTHER [NCOME [CHARGES) - Met 24 {50,885 HL78 MaE
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE

INCOME TAX 145827 (54453 (1333482
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT] 18 _ 507 8% 578,055 [H52.547)
MET LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (364,069 (532508 {581,035
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS -

Met af fax & {21,527 133,699 (120160
MET LOSS [P385.5%4) [FroaRlr (FLIOLIRS
Basic and Diluted Loas Per Share a0 [PL5Z) (P2 Ba) (P57
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share - Continuing

Operations 0 (F1.44) (P27 {Pass)

See Notes to the Comsolidated Financal Satements
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GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013
in Thousands|
Note 2015 a4 2013
MET LOSS {P385.576) (FF66.2071 (PL101.195)
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE [MOOME [LOSS)
[tern that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Share in olher comprehensive incame {los) of
joint ventures it [24.571) 5,564 G219
[terns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Equity reserve for retiremant plan 2 {182, 704} (4% 958} A2.40%
_Income tax lexpense] benefit 54,811 20,987 {16,783
COTHER COMPREHEMSIVE [NCOME [LOSS) - Met of tax {152 Bad) (43,407} 50,045
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS - Met of tax [P538. 44501 [PBOP.614F (PLOSTISON

Spe Notes fo Hhe Consolidared Financial Statements,
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GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Mk & ar.. b

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013
{in Thousands|

§
:

2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Incame {loss] before ineams tax from:
Continuing operations Pl45.827 P54.458  (P1330482)
Dascontinwed operations (190,998 71857
1is5.074 {245451) (150533
Adjusitnents (o

g
2

Depreciation and amortization i2 23 Bdd 24T THI4 T4ZH4

Interest expense and othar financing charges I5RIFZS 486.15% S0.313 GaT AT

Provision oy irmpairment loceq & 13 22 24 204,052 BLOBO -

Write-down of inventories (o nel reslizabls

value 220 195,683 G, 000 -

Equity in net losses of joint venlures i 109667 £, 285 i, 763

Retirement axpenss a9 54,825 1078 i, 448

HMet unreallzed forsipn exchanpe

fors {gain) 25 2,081 (2778 (7,980}

Met dertvative boss (galind 25 Fo2 24509 (L0O7)

Interes ineome 2 (29.844) L2 B {L024T)

Loss {gaini on sale of property and equipment & 17 {162,923 103 1705}
Crperating income before working capital

changes 1702124 1.288.273 15:344
Desrpeease racraase) In

Trade arad ather receivables T T4 HEO7T ozl

Inventories {624,127 TYrRae 1574.14%

Prepaid expendes and other current assets .08 11098 HF3F71
Increase [decrease) in:

Trade and other payabies [37.314) 1515799 TH5%

Incore and other taxes payable 2,541} {95800 51,287
Casl gensrated from operalions 1,668 854 2087 B1E 1,054,368
Interest received 27710 2280 10,247
[nicome taxes paid (30,4300 11 (490
Cantribution to retiremant plan ) (70771 48951 (77741}
Bat cash Hows provided by operating activitles 1, 76% 057 2029 8R4 a7 084
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additbone to propetty, plant and equlpmment 13 (232743} (212587 LS O
Descrease {incresse) in otler noncurrent e 38,060 {33ETEF {72350
Procoods from sake of MAB asseis & 438 283 - .
et cash flows provided by [used In) Investing

E-Hriles 3837 {565, 774) (328, 648)

Farwand
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads frone

Shori-term borrowings

Collection of subscriptbon recalvables
Payments ol

Shaort-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Intérest and other financing charged

Cash dividends

PELOFLOLE PIOOEASTEA  PIOL9RISTE
&, 6EF 2530 3448

(B3,449,994) [100722284) (101442774
[114,286] {28571 [542857)
(498,989) {565,041) (545,239}

{23} (55 {2540

it cash flowes wsed in financing activitics

(2.286,571) (1400388 (626.504)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES OM

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 103 2483 1877
MET [NCREASE (DECREASE) [N
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {134,116} G A5 15.80%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINKING OF YEAR 319,917 31312 497,503
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR P445,80r1 PaFRRLY P513,.312

See Motes fo bhe Covrmdidfed Sinancial Slatements.
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34 GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC.

GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[Amounts in Thousands, Except Percentages, Per Share Data and Mumber of Shares]

1 Reporting Entity

Ginebra San Miguel Ine, [GEMI ar the Company), a subsidiary of Fan Miguel Corporation [SMC or
the Parent Company], was incorporated in the Philippines on July 10, 1787. Top Frontier
Investment Haldings, Inc. (Top Frontier) Is the ultimate parent company of the Group,

The accompanying consolidated financial statements comprizse the financial statements of the
Company and its Subsidiaries {collectively referred to as the "Group”) and the Group's interests
in joirt ventures,

The Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities Regulation Code and its
shares are listed an The Philippiee Stock Exchange, Inc,

The Group ks primarily engaged in manufacturing and selling of alcoholic and nonalcoholic
beverages {(MABL

In 2015, the Group sold its MAE business to San Miguel Brewery Inc. {SEB) (Mote ).

The registered office address of the Company is 3™ and &' Floor, San Miguel Properties Cenire,
5t. Francis Street, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City.

2 Basis of Preparation

slatement of Compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Szandards (PFRS. PFRS are based on International Financial
Beparting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Beard, PFRS consist of
PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards [PAS] and Philippine Interpretations issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council [FRSC)

The consodidated financial statements were approved and authoricoed for issue in accordance
writh a resolution by the Board al Directors (BOD) an March 14, 2016

Bagis of Measurement
The consolidated financial staternents of the Group hawve been prepared on a historical cost basis

of accounting except for the following items which are measured on an alternative basis at each

reporting date;
ftems Measurement Basis
Drerivative financial instruments Fair value
Defined berefit retirement asset (liahility) Fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit
retirement obligation

Fi ieial And P —
The consolidated financial stabements are presented in Philippine peso, which s the Company's
functional currency. All financial information are rounded off to the nearest thousand (000,
except when otherwise indicated,
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Basis of C lidati
The consalidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the following
whally-owned subsidiaries:

Hame of Subsidlary Country of Incorporation
Distileria Bago, Inc. (DB Philippines

East Pacific Star Bottlers Phils Inc. {EFSBPI) Philippines

Aaricrops Industries, Ine, (All) Philipgines

Healthy Condiments, Inc. (HCI) Philippines

Ginebra San Miguel International Lid, {GSMIL) British Virgin lslands (BVT)
GEM International Holdings Lid. (GSRIHL) BvV1

Glohal Baverage Holdings Lid. {GEHL) BV

Siam Holdings Ltd, [SHL) BVI

A subsidiary 15 an entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if, and only if,
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through Its power over the entity, The Group
reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control,

When the Group has less than majority of the voting or similar rights of an investes, the Group
congiders all relevant facts and circumstances in agsessing whether it has power over an
investes, including the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investes,
rights arising from other contractual arrangements and the Group's voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated fimancial

statements from the date when the Group obtalns conbral, and continue to be consolidated unidl
the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting pericd as the
Company, using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. Intergroup balances and transactions, including intergroup unrealived profits
and bosses. are eliminated in preparing the consalidated financial statements,

A change in the cwnership interest in a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction. If the Group losss control over a subsidiary, the Group: (i} derecognizes
the assets (including goodwill) and liakilities of the subsidiary, and the cumulative transaction
differences recorded in equity; (i} recognizes the fair value of the consideration received, the
fair value of any investment retained and any surplus or deficit im the consalidated statements
of incorne; and (i} reclassify the Company’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or labilities.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the consolidated financial statements, except for the changes in acoounting policies as explained

belows,

The FRSC approved the adoption of a number of new and amended standards and

interpretation as part of PFRS.

Amendments fo Standards and Interpretaion Adopred in 2015

The Group has adopted the following PFES effective January 1, 2015 and accordingly, changed
its accounting policies in the following areas:

Annual Improvemnents bo FERE Cyoles 2018-2012 and 2011-201 3 contain 11 changes to nine
standards with consequential amendments to other standards and interpretations, of which
oniby the following are applicable to the Groug:

=

Meaning of 'Vesting Condition' {Amendment fo PFRS 2 Share-hased Paymant! FFRS 2
has been amended to clarify the definition of "vesting condition” by separately defining
‘performance condition' and 'service condition’. The amendment also clarifies the
following: §i} how to distinguish between a market and a non-market performance
condition; and (i) the basis on which a performance condition can be differentiated
from a nen-vesting condition. The adoption of the amendment did not have an effect
on the consolidated financial staterments.

Scope Ewxchugion for the Formation of Joint Arsrangements [fdmendment fo
PERE.D Musiness Combinatfons! PFRS 3 has been amended to clarify that the standard
does not apply to the actounting for the formation of afl types of joint arrangements in
FFRS 11 Joint Arrangerrenis - e, including joint operations - in the financial
gtaterments of the joint arrangements themseslves. The adoption of the amendment did
nof hase an effect on the consolidated financial stakernents.

Disclosures on the Aggregation of Operating Segments [Amendmenés fo PFRS &
Operating Sapmentsl PFRS § has been amended to explicitly requice the disclosure of
judgrments made by managemant in applying the agaregation criteria. The disclosures
include: (1} a brief description of the operating segments that have been aggregated; and
(i3} the economnic indicators that hawve been assessed in determining that the operating
segments share similar economic characteristics. In addition. the amendments clacify
that a reconciliation of the total of the repartable segrnents’ assets to the entity’s assets
is required only if this information s regularly provided to the entity's chief operating
decision maker. This change allgns the disclosure requirements with those for segment
liabilities. The adoption of the amendments did not have an effect on the consolidated
financial statemenis.

scope of Portfolio Exception fAmendment fo FERS 13 Far Value Measurement! The
amendment clarifies that the scope of the exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financlal assets and fnancial Habilities with alfsetting risk pasitions on a net
basis (portfolio exception) applies to contracts within the scope of PAS 3%, Financial
fnstrifnents Becognition amd Measuremend and PFRS 2 Financfal fmefrmenis
regardless of wihether they meet the definition of financial assets or financial Hahilities
under PAS 32, Financial Instrimments: Preseniation - e.g., certain contracts to buy or sell
non-fimancial iterns that can be settled net in cash or another financial instnament, The
adoption of the amendment did not have an effect on the consolidated financial
gratements
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i Definition of ‘Refated Party’ (Amendimenis fo PAS 24 Relaled Farty Disclosurest The
definition of a ‘related party’ is extended to include a management entity that provides
key management personnel (KMP) services to the reporting entity, either directly or
through a group-entity. For related party transactions that arise when KMP services are
provided to a reporting entity, the reporting entity is required to separately disclose the
amants that it has recognized az an expense [or those services that are provided by a
management entity; however, it i5 not required to 'look through' the management
entity and disclose compensation paid by the management entity o the [Individuals
providing KMP services.: The reporting entity will also nesd to disclose other
transactions with the management entity under the existing disclosure requirements of
PAS 24 - eg. loans. The adoption of the amendments did not hawve an effect on the
consolidated financial statements,

o Classification and Measurement of Contingent Consideration (Amendmenis fo
PFERE 3! The amendments clarify the classification and measurement of contingant
consideration in a business combination. When contingent consideration is a finandial
instrument, its classification as a lability or equity s determingd by reference to PAS
32, rather than bo any olher PFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a Hability is always subsequently measured at falr valee, with changes in falr value
recognized in the consolidated statements of income. Consequential amendments are
also made to PAS 3% and PFRS 9 to prehibit contingent consideration from subsequently
being measured at armortized cost. In addition, PAS 37, Prowisfars, Confingent Liabilities
and Confingert Assers 15 amended o exclodes provisions related to contingent
consideration. The adopton of the amendments did mot have an effect on the
consalidated financial statements,

Additional disclosures regiired by the amended standards were included in the consolidated
financial statemnents, where appiicable,

Mew and Amended Standands and fferpretation Mot Yer Adopied

A nurmber of new and amended standards and Interpretation are effective for annual pericds
beginning after January 1, 2015 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated
financial staterments. Unbes otherwise Indicated, none of these is expected o have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial staterments.

The Group will adopt the following new and amended standards and interpretation on the
respective effective dates:

*  Disclosure Initlative (dmendments to PAS I Presentation of Financial Staterments! The
amendments clarify the followling: () the materiality requirements in PAS 1
{ii} that specific line items in the consalidated statements of income, consolidated statements
of comprehensive income and the consolidated statements of Tinancial position may be
disaggregated; (i) that entities have Hexibility as to the order in which they present the
notes to the consolidated financial statements; and (iv) that share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be
presented in agaregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or
will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Purthermore, the amendments clarify
the regquirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the consolidated
statemnents of financial position, the consolidated statements of income and consalidated
statements of comprehensive Income. The amendments are regulred to be applisd for
annual pericds beginning on or after January 1. 2014, Early adoption is permitted.
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Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in  Joint Operations (dmendments  fo
FFRS 11 The amendments require business combination accounting to be applied to
acquisitions of interests in a jint operation that constitubes a business, Business
combination accounting also applies to the acquisition of additional interests in a joint
operation while the joint operator retains joint control. The additional interest acquired will
be meastred at falr valee. The previously held [nterests in the joint aperation will not be
remeasured. The amendments place the focus firmby on the definition of a business,
because this is key to determining whether the acquisition is accounted for as a business
combination or as the acquisition of a collection of assets. As a result, this places pressure on
the judgment applied in making this determination. The amendments are required to be
applied prospectively for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 20146, Early
adopthomn ks permitted.

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amartization fAmendments fo
PAS 14, Property, Plant and Eguipment and PAS 38 Intangible Assets) The amendments to
PAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization
methods for intangible assete is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only
when revernee and the consummption of the economic benefits of the intanglble asset are
highly correlated, or when the intangible as=et is expressed as a measure of revenwe Tha
amendments o PAS 16 explicitly state that revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot
be used for property, plant and equipment. This is because such methods reflect factors
other than the consumption of economic benefits embodied in the asset - e.g, changes in
gales yolumes and prices. The amendments are required to be applied prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2006, Early application is perrmitted,

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and Its Assoclate or Joint Venbure
{Ameandmenis fo PFRE 10 Comsolidated Financial Stafemenits amd PAS 28 fnvesimmends i
Associafes) The amendments address an inconsistency in the requiréments in PFRS 10 and
PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and. its
associate or wint venture, The amendments require that a full gain or boss s recognized
when a transaction involves a business whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not. A
partial gain or loss i5 recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these agsets are housed in a subsgidiary. The amendments are reguired to
b applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or atber January 1, 20016, Early
adoption is permitted.

Annes! mprovements fo PFERE Cyoles 20022014 contain changes to four standards, of
which only the Changes in Method for Disposal (Amendments fo PERS 5 Noncurrent
Assats Held for Sale and Discontinesd Operations! ta appiicable to the Groap. PFRSS da
amended to clarify that {a) it an entity changes the method of dispeszal of an asset or
disposal group - e, reclassifies an asset or dispesal group from held-for-distribaticn o
owners to held-for-sale; or vice versa, without any time lag - the change in classification is
considered a continuation of the criginal plan of disposal and the entity continues to apply
held-for-distribution or held -for-sale acoounting. At the time of the change in method, the
entity meagures the carrying amount of the asset or disposal group and recognizes any
wirite-down [impairment loss) or subsequent increase in the fair walue of the asset or
disposal group, less costs to sell or distribute; and b if an entity determines that an-asset or
disposal group ne lenger meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-distribution, then it
ceases held-for-distribution accounting in the same way as it would cease held-for-sale
accounting. Any change in method of disposal or distribution does not, in itself, extend the
period fn which a sale has to be completed, The amendments to PFRS 3 are applied
prospectively in accordance with PAS 8 Accounting Polices Changes in Accounfing
Estimates and Errors, o changes In methods of disposal that cocur on or after January 1,
20164,
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¥ PFRS 9 [2014) replaces PAS 3% and supersedes the previously published versions of FFRS 9
that introduced new classifications and measurement requirernents {in 2009 and 2010) and
a new hedge accounting medel fin 2083). PFRS 2 includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss
model for caleulating impairment of all financial assets that are not measured at fair value
through profit or less (FVPL)L which generally depends an whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk simce initial recognition of a financial asset. and
supplements the new general hedge scoounting requirements published in 2003, The new
model on hedge accounting requirements provides significant improvements by aligning
hedpe accounting mone closely with risk management. The new standard Is required to be
applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2008 Early

adoption is permitted.

¢ PFRS 18, Leases supersedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine Inter pretations, The
new standard introduces a single lease accounting mode] for lessess under which all major
leases are recognized on-balance sheet removing the lease classification test. Lease
accounting for kessors essentially remaing unchanged except for a number of details
inchuding the application of the new lease definition. new sale-and-leaschack guidance, now
sub-iease guidance and new disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeted
reliefs were introduced including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases
with a term of 12 months or lessland low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-
level accounting instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. Bew estimates
and padgmental threshalds that affect the entification, classification and neasurement of
leasze transactions, as well as requirements to reassess certain key estimates and judsments
at each reporting date were introduced. PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
ar after January 1, 2019, Earlier application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted
PFRS 15 The Group is currently assessing the potential impact of PFRS 16 and plans (o
adopt this new standard on leases on the reguired effective date once adopted locally,

= [FRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces PAS 11 Consfrincfion Comfracts,
PAS 1B, Bevenie IFRIC 13, Customer Lovalty Programmes, [FRIC 18, Transfer of Assels
from Custamersand Standard Interpretation Commmlites - 31, Revenue - Barter Transactions
Involving Advertising Services Thie new standard introduces a new revenue recognition
model for contracts with customers which specifles that revenus should e recognized
when [or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to
which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met,
TEVEnuEe is recognized over time, ina manner that best reflects the company’s performance,
ot at a point in time, when control of the goeds or services is transferred to the customer,
The standard does not apply to insurance contracts. financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRS. It also dees not apply i two compandes in
the same lime of usiness exchanges nonmonetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties,
Furthermore, I a contract with a customer is partly in the scope of apother PFRS, then the
gudance on separation and rmeasurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

Hewrever, the FREC has yet 1o fssue/zpprove this new revenue standard for local adoption
pending completion of a study by the Philippine Interpretations Committes on its impact on
the real estate industry. [f approwved, the standard is effective for annual periods beginning
onor after January 1. 2018, with early adoption permitted.

Ei sl gt | Financial Liabiliti
Date of Recogrition. The Group recognizes a fimancial asset or a financial Hakdlity in the
consolidated statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets,
recognition is done using seftlement dabe accounting.
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Tniial Recognitfan of Financial fnstnumeents. Financial instraments are recognized injtially at
fair valee of the consideration given {in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability]. The
initial measurernent of financial instruments, except for those designated as at FWPL includes
transaction costs

Day ' ifference, Where the transaction price in & nidn-active market is different from the fair
value of ather observable current market transactions In the same instrument or based on &
valuation technigue whose variables include only data from observable market. the Group
recoginlzes the difference betwean the transaction price and the falr value {3 Thay 1 difference)
in the consolidated statements of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
azzet In caset where data used = not observable, the difference batween the transaction price
and meodel value = only recognized in the consolidated statements of income when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction. the Group
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1' difference amount.

FEinarcial Assels

The Group classifies its financial assets, at initial recognition, in the following categorices
financial assets at FVPL loans and receivables, avallable-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and held-
to-maturity (HTM) investments. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
inwestments are acquired and whether they are guoted In an active market. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assetz at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates asuch designation at every reporting date.

The Group has no financlal assets classified as HTM Investments and AFS financial assets as of
Dwecember 31, 2015 and 2014,

Financial Aszets 36 FVPL, A financial asset is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held for
trading or i desipnated as such upan initial recognition. Financial assets are designated as at
FVPL if the Group manages such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on
thelr fair walues in accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy
of the Group. Derivative instruments [including embedded derivatives), except those covered
by hedpe accounting relationships, are classified under this categary.

Firsancinl assets are clagsified as held for teading i they are acquired for the parpose of selling in
the near term.

Financial assets may be designated by management at initial recognition as at FYPL when any
af the lollowing criteria is met:

#  the designation eliminates or significantly redices the inconsistent treatment that woald
atheiwrize arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or koszes on a different basis;

* the assets are part of a proup of financial assets which are managed and their performances
are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy; or

» the financial imstrument containg an embedded derivative, unless the embeadded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with litthe o nd analysis, that [t
wild niot be separately recognized.

The Group carries financial assets at FWPL using their fair values. Atiributable tran=action costs
are rocognized in the consolidated statements of income as incurred. Fair value changes and
realized gaing or losses are recopnized in the consolidated statements of income Fair valus
changes from derivatives accounted for as part of an effective cash Flow hedpe are recognized in
other comprehensive income and presented In the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. Any interest earned is recognized as part of “Interest income” account in the
consolidated statermnents of income. Any dividend income from equity securities classifhsd as at
FVPL is recognized in the consolidated statements of income when the right to receive payment
has been established,
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The Group's derivative assets are classificd under thiscategory (Mokes 10, 32 and 331

Loans and Revervables Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
enterad into with the intention of immediate or short-term resabe and are not designated as AFS
linamcial assets or financial assets sl FYPL '

Subsequent toinitlal measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amertized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any Impairment in value, Any interest sarned on loans and
receivables is recognized as part of “Interest income” account in the consolidated statements of
income on an-acchial basis. Amortized cost §s calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
periodic amortization is also inchided as part of “Interest income” account in the consalidated
statements of income. Gains or losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of income
when loans and recelvables are derecognized or impalred.

Caszh includes cash on hand and in barks which are stated at face value, Cash equivalenis are
short-term. highly tligquid investments that are readily conwvertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insgnificant risk of changes in vahoe

The Groug's cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and noncurrent receivables
and deposits are included under this category (Motes 7, &, 14, 32 and 33}

g ol Liabiliti
The Group classifies its financial labilities. at initial recognition, in the following categories:
financial liabilites at FVPL and other financial liabilities, The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition ard, where allowed and approprizte,
re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date; All financial liabilities are recognized
inmitially at fair value and, in the case of loans amd borrowings, net of directly attributable
{ransactbon costs

Financial Liabdlites af FVPL Financial liabilities are classified under this category through the
fair value opticn. Derivative instruments {including embedded derivatives) with negative fair
values, except those covered by hedge accounting relationships, are also classified under this

category.

The Group carries financial Habflities at FWPL using their fair values and reports fair value
changes in profit or lesz  Fair value chanpes from derivatives acoounted for as part of an
effective accounting hedee are recognized inother comprehensive income and presented n the
consolidated statements of changes in equity. Any interest expense incurred is recognized as
part of "Interest expense and other financing charges” sccount in the consolidated statements of
income.

The Growup's derivative liabilities are classified under this category (Motes 16, 32 and 331

Other Financial Liatkflifies. This category pertains to Anancial Hahilities that are not designated
or classified as at FYPL After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are carried at
amortized coat using the effective interest rate method, Amortized cost is calculated by taking
inta account any premium or discount and any directly attributable transactbon costs that are
considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of the liability. The effective interest
rate amortization iz included in “Interest expense and other financing charges” account in the
consolidated statements of income. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statements of income when the Habilities are derecognized az well as through the amortization
ProCeEss,

The Groupg's liakilities arlsing from its trade or barrowings such as notes payable, trade and
other pavables and long-term debt are included under this category [Motes 15, 18, 17, 32 and 33},
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Dettvative Fi il b arid Hedgi
Embedded Derivatives
The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from the host

cantracts when the Group becormes 3 party to the contract

An embedded derivative |3 separated from the host conteact and aceounted for ag & derivative i
all of the following conditions are met:

{al the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract;

b a zeparate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative: and

ic)  the hybrid or combined instrament 13 not recognized asat FVPL

Reassessment anly cccurs iF there 15 5 change in the terims of the contract that stgndficantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Embedded derivatives that are bifurcated from the host contracts are accounted for either as
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL

The Group has not bifurcated any embedded derivatives as of December 31, 2015 and 2004,

avcinl Assels anc apycial Liatilidjes
Financial Assets. A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

¥ the rights to recetve cash flows from the asset have expired: or

*  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay them In full witheut material delay to a thivd party under a "pass-through’
arrangement; and either: (a] has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asmet; ar (b) has nedther transferred nor retained substantiafly all the risks and rewards: of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantiatly all the risks
and rewsards of the asset ner transferred contral of the asset, the Group continues to recognine
the transferred assel to the extent of the Groups continuing invelvement. In that cass, the
Group also recognizes the assoclated liability, The transterred asset and the assoclated Hability
are rueasured on the basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial Liatalities. A financial lakility is derecognized when the obligation under the lakdlity
is discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender an substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are
substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original lability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
arnoants is recognized in the consolidated statements of incotne,

The Group azsesses, at the reporting date, whether a linancial as=t or group of financial assets
1s impaired.
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A linanclal asset ar a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only i, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or maore ewents that have oocurred atter the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated,

For financial assets carried al amortized cost such as loans and recelvables, the Growp first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individuwally
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant If no
obiective evidence of impairment has been identified for a particular financial asset that was
individually assesed. the Group includes the asset as part of a group of financial assets with
gimilar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses the group for impairment.  Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be recognized, are mot included in the collective impairment assessment,

Evidence of impalrment may include indications thal the borrower or a group of borrowers s
experiencing financial difficulty, default or delinquency in principal or interest paymoants, or
may enter into bankruptcy or other form of financial resrganization intended to alleviate the
financial condition of the borrower. For collective impairment purposes, evidence of
impairment may include observable data on existing economic conditions or industry-wide
dewelopments indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
of the related assets,

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fhows
lexcluding future credit losses) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
iLe., the effective interest rate computed at Initial recognition], Time value s generally not
considered when the effect of discounting the cash flows is not material. If a loan or receivable
has a variable rate, the discount rate lor measuring any impalrment loss |5 the current effective
interest rate. adjusted for the ariginal credit risk premium. For collective impairment purposes,
impairment loss is computed based on their respective default and historical loss experience,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account, The impairment Joss for the period BB recognized in the consolidated statements of
incorme. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decreasze can be related objectively to an event cocurring after the Impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reverzal of an
impairment loss is recognized in the consclidated statements of income, to the extent that the
carrying armount of the aszet does not exceed its amortized cost at the reverzal date.

Finan-clal I.nﬂrumnts are cl:nmﬁd as I.lahlhw ar aqulty 1n av:cnrd-.m with the substance of
the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial
instrument or a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income.
Distributions to holders of financial instruments clazsified as equity are charged directly to
eqquity, net of any related income tax benefits.

A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to
*  deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

»  gxrhange financial assets or financial liakilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavorable to the Growp; or

¢ satisfy the obligativn other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or anather
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares;
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If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
aszet to settle itz coniractual obligatiom, the obligation meets the definition of a financial
liability,

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both Gability and equity elements
are accounted for separately, with the equity component belng asstgned the residual amaunt
after deducting from the instrument as a whele, the amount separately determined as the fair
value of the llability component on the date of issue,

Debt Issue Costs

Diebt isswe costs are considered as an adjustment to the effective yield of the related debt and
are deferred and amortized using the effective interest rate methoed, When a loan ks pald, the
related unamortized debt jzsue costs at the date of repayment are recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.

Qifsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the

consolidated statements of financial position If, and anly if, there {5 a carrently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on- a net basiy, or to
realize the assets and zettle the liabilities simaltanecasty. This i ot generally the case with
master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the
consolidated statements of financial pesition

lnventories

Finished poods and materials and sepplies-are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value (INRV).

Casts incurred [n bringing each inventory to its present location and condition are acoounted
for as follows:

Finkshed goods - at cost, which Includes divect materials and labor and a
proportion of manufacturing overhead costs based on
narmal operating capacity bul excluding borrowing
costs; costs are determined using the moving-average
miethod,

Materials and supplies r at cost, using the moving-average method.

Finished Good's Met realizable value 5 the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Mavertals and Suppdies. Met realizable value is the current replacement cost.

Comntaimars (Lg, Returnahle Bottles and Shells! These are stated at deposit values less any
impairment in value, The excess of the acguisition cost of the containers over their deposit
value is presented as "Defoarred containers” under "Other noncurrent assets - net” account iin the
consolidated statements of fHinancial position and i amartized over the estimated wseful life of
ten years. Amortization of deferred containers ks included under "General and administrative
exnpenses” account in the consalidated statements of income,

. i M Ll AIH r 2 LI

The Group classifies nomcurment assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and Habilities as
held for sale or distribution, if their carryving amounts will be recevered primarily through sale
of distribution rather than through continuing use, The assets or disposal groups are generally
mizasured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value Jess costs o sell or distribute,
except for some assets which are covered by other standards. Any impairment Joss an a
disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and Habilities on
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fro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets
and employes benefit assets, which continue to be meazsured in accardance with the Group's
accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale or distribution and
subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognized in the consclidated statements of
Incorme, Gains are not recognized in excess of any cumulative impaitment losses

The criteria for held for zale or distribution is regarded as met only when the sale or distribution
i5 highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale or distribution
in itz present condition. Actions required to complete the sile or distribution should indicate
that it iz unlikely that slgnificant changes to the sale will be made or that the sale will be
withdrawmn.

Property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale or distribution are not
depreciated.

Assels and liabdlities classified as held for sale or distribution are presented separately as
current items in the consolidated statements of Hnancial position.

A dizcontinued operation is a compenent of the Group's business, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from the vest of the Group and which: (1) represent a
separate major line of business or geographic area of operations: (2] is part of a single
eodrdinated plan to dispose a separate major line of business or graphic area of operations or (3}
iz a subsidiary aoquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation ooours at the earlier of disposal or when the operation
taeets the criteria to be classified as held for sale. When an operation 1z classifled as a
discontinued operation. the comparative consolidated statements of income are re-presented as
if the eperation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative period,

Dizcontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing eperations and are
presented a5 a single amount az “Loss from discontinued opecations - net of tax’ in the
consolidated statements of Income.

B Coabiati
Business combinations are accounted for vsing the acquisition method as at the acquisition date,
The cost of an acquisitbon s measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
msasured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquires.  For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acguiree at fair value or at proportionate share of the acquires's
identifiable net assets. Acguisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included as part
of "General and admindstrative expenses’ account in the consalidated statements of income.

When the Group acquires a business, il assesses the Hnancial azsets and financial labilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contracthial
terms, econamic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
prevviousty hald equity interest in the acguiree is remeasured at the acquisition date fair value
and any resulfing gain or 1oss s recognized In the consolidated statementsof income,

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as: a) the fair value of the consideration
transferred; plus b) the recognized amount of any on-controlling interests in the acguires; plus
ek if thve busimess comblnation i achdeved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity Interest
in the acquires; less d) the net recognized amount {generally fair value} of the identifiable assets
acculred and labilitkes assurmed. When the excess s negative, a bargain purchase gain s
recognized immediztely in the consolidated statements of income. Subsequently, poodwill is
mexsured at cost less any accumulated impatrment In valuwe  Goodwill b5 reviewsd for
impairment, anneally or more frequently. if events ar changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may be impaired,
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The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of
pre-existing relationships.  Such amounts are generally recognized in the consolidated
statements of income. Costs related to the acquisition. other than those associated with the
Issuance af debt or equity securities that the Group incurs in connection with a business
combination, are expensed as incurred. Any contingent consideration pavable is measured at
falr walie at the acquisition date, I the contingent constderation 1 classified as equity, it i3 not
remeasurad and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in the consolidated statements of
InooIme.

Goodwill in 2 Busimess Combination

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, frem the acquisition date, allocated te each of
the cach-penerating units, or growups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the symergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities are assigned
to those units or growps of units, Exch unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated:

=  represents the lowest kevel within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes; and

* iz not larger than an operating segment determined in accordance with PFRS 2.

Impairment is determined by asssssing the recoverable amount of the cash-penerating unit or
group of cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment koss is recognized. Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwrill
associated with the cperation disposed of s included in the carryving amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance s measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained. An impairment loss with respect to goodwill is not
reversed.

Transactions under Common Control

Transactions under commean control enterad info In contermplation of each other and buslness
combination under commen control designed to achieve an overall commercial effect are
treated as a single trangaction,

Transiers of assets between commenly controlled entities are accounted for using book value
accounting.

I i Jaiat ¥V
A joint venture §s a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractwally
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. which exists anly when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimeus consent of the parties sharing cantrol,

The considerations made in determining jodnt control is similar to those necessary to determine
contral over subsidiaries,

The Group's investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in joint venture is initially recognized at cost. The
carrving amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize the changes in the Group’s share of
et assets of the joint venture since the acguisition date. Goodwrill relating to the joint venture is
included in the carcying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually
tested for impairment.
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The Group's share in profit or loss of joint senture is recognized as "Bguity in net kosses of joint
ventures” account in the consolidated statements of income  Adjustments to the carrying
amount may also be necessary for changes in the Group's proportionate interest in the joint
venture arising from changes in the joint venture's other comprehensive income. The Group's
share of these changes I3 recognized as "Share in other comprehensive income {loss) of joint
ventures” account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Unrealized gains
and losses resulting from Lransactions between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.

When the Group's share of losses in a joint wventure equals or exceeds its interest in the joint
ventures, the Growp does not recognize further losses, unbess it has incurred obligation or made
payrments on behalf of the joint wenture.

After applicaton of the equity method, the Group determines whether it Is necessary to
recognize an impairment loss with respect to the Group's net investment in the joint venture,
At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there s oblective evidence that the
investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group recalculates the
amount af impalrment as the difference between the recoverable amount and carrying amant
of the joint venture. Such impairment loss is recognized as part of "Equity in net koases of joint
ventures” account in the consolidated statements of [ncome

Upon loss of joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognizes any
retained inwvestment at fair valee Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint
venture upen loss of joint control and the fair value of the retaimed investment and proceeds
from dispoesal is recognized in the conasclidated staternents of income.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the acoounting policies in line with
thiose of the Group,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization and any accumulated impairment in value, Such cost Includes the cost of
replacing part of the property. plant and equiprment at the time the cost is incurred, if the
recognitbon criteria are met, and excludes the costs af dayv-to-day servicing. Land is stated at
cost leas any impairment in value,

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its construction cost or purchass
price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use, Cost also incledes any related asset
retirement obligation (ARO). Expenditures incurred after the asset has been put into operation,
such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized as expense in the
pericd the costs are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property, plant and
equipment only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the [tens will
flow to the Group and the cost of the items can be measured reliakbly,

Capital projects in progress (CPIP) represents the amount of accumulated expendifures on
unfinished andfor engeing projects. This includes the casts of construction and other direct
costs. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of plant and equipment
are capitalized during the construction peried. CPIP is not depreciated until such time that the
relevant assets are ready for wse
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Depreciation and amortization, which commence when the assets are available for their
intended use, are computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives of the az=ets;

Mumber of Years
Land improvements 5-10
Bulldings and building improvements 20 -50
Transportation equiprment 5
Flachinery and squipment 3-40
Furniture, fixtures and other equipmen: 2-5
Leaschold improverments 16-30

or term of the lease,

whichever is shorter

The remaining useful Hves, residual values, and depreciation and amottization methods ane
reviewed and adjusted periodically, if appropriate, to ensure that such periods and methods of
depreciation and amortizatlon are conslstent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from the items of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circamstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable,

Fully depreciated azsets are refained in the acoounts until they are no longer in use,

Anitem of property. plant and equipment is derecojrnized when either it has been disposed of
af when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future econamic benefits are expected
trom its use or disposal, Any gain or Ioss arising from the retirement and disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset] s included in the consolidated statements of income in
thie period of retirement and disposal.

litangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost Subsequently,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulatesd
impairment losses. Internally ganerated intangible assets, excluding capitalized dewelopment
costs, are not capitalized and expenditures are recognized in the consolidated statements of
incaime in the year in which the related expenditures are incurred. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful life and asseszed for impairment
whenever there |5 an indicatlon that the intangible assets may be impaired, The amortization
pericd and the amortization method used for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed ai least at each reporting date, Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economsic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method. as appropriate, and are treéated as changss in
accounting estimate.  The amortization expense on intangible assets with finibe lives is
recogriized in the consolidated statements of income consistent with the function of the
intangible azset

Amartization 15 computed using the straight-line methad over the estimated wseful life of four
o ten years.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the aset, and are recognized in
the consolidated staternents of ncome when the asset is derecognized,
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Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of investments in joint ventures, property, plant and equipment,
intangihle assets, deferred containers and idle assets are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
Intangible azset: with indefinite usetul lives are tested for lepalrment annually efther
individually or at the cash-penerating unit lewel. [f any such indication exists, and if the
carrying amount exceeds Lhe estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating unils
are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amouwnt of the asset is the
greater of falr value less costs to sell and value in use, The fair value less costs to sell is the
armount obtainable from the sale of an aszset in an arm's length ransaction bebween
knowledgeable, willing parties, less costs of disposal  Value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from itz
disposal at the end of its useful life

In assessing value in wse. the estimated future cash flowrs are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rale that reflects current market assessments al the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does nob generate largely
independent cazh inflows, the recoverable amaunt [s determined for the cash-generating unit
to wihich the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in the consclidated statemnents of
incame in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication. that
previcusty recognized impairment bosses may no longer exist or may have decreased. [f such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed anly i there has besn a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable ammount since the last impairment boss was recognized. It that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset Is increased fo its recoverable amount, That Increased amount
canmot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation and
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognized in the consolidated statements of income. After such a reversal, the depreciation
and amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying
amount, less any residual vahee, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Ealr Value Meazurements
The Group measures a number of Hinancial and non-financial assets and liabilities at fair value

at each reporting date.

Falr value ks the price that would be recelwed to sell an asset or pald to transfer a lability In an
orderfy transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurenvent [ based on the presumption thal the transactbon to sell the asset or transfer the
liabdlity takes place either in the principal market for the asset or Hahility, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
miost advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or lability i measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participsnts act
in thedr best economic interest,

The Group wses valuatbon technigues that are appropriate in the clreumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the ase of relevant observable
Inpiits and minlmizing the use of unobservable inputs,
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consalidated
financial staternents are categorized within the falr value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the kowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

=  Fevell: guoted prices unadjusted] in actise markets for identical assets or liabilities;

= LewelZ inpats other than quoted prices included whithin Level 1 that are ohservable for
the asset or lHability, either directly or indirectly; and

¢ Leveld inputsfor the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have cccurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing the cateporization at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair wvalue disclosures the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabdlithes on the basks of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assst or Hability and the
levvel of the fair value hierarchy,

Prgyisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of past events; (b) it is probakble (e, more likely than net) that an outflow af resources
embodying econamic bemefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (£} a reliable esfimate
af the amaount of the obligation can be made, Where same or all of the expendifure required to
settle & provision is expected to be reimbursed by ancther party, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate assel only when Il B virfually certain that reimbursement will be
received. The amount recognized for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the
provvision. Provisions are reviewsd at each reporting date and adpusted 1o reflect the current
best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the Hability. Where discounting s used, the
incresse in the provision due to the passape of time is recognized as interest expense.

Capital Stocl { Additional Paid-in Capital
S Shares

Common shares are clazsified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
cammeon shares and share optlons are recogrized as a deduction rom equity, net of any tax
effects.

Freferred Shares

Preferred shares are classified as equity if they are non-redeemabde, or redeemabde only at the
Company's option, and any dividends thereon are discretlonary. Dividends thereon are
recognized as distribations within eguity upon approval by the BOD of the Company.

Preferred shares are classified as a liability if they are redeemable on a specific date or at the
option of the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary. Dividends thereon
are recognized as interest expense in the consolidated statements of income as accrued.

Additonal Paid=in Capital

When the shares are sold at premium, the dilference between the proceeds and the par value is
credited to the "Additional paid-in capital” account. When shares are issued for a consideration
ather than cash, the proceeds are measured by the fair value of the consideration received. In
cage the shares are ssued to extinguish or sattle the lability af the Company, the shares are
maasured either at the fair value of the shares issued ar fair value of the liability settied,
whichewer is more reliably determinable,
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Treasury Shares

O equity instruments which are reacquired are carried at cost and deducted from equity, Mo
gain or loss is recognized on the purchase, sale, refssuance or cancellation of thie Company’s own
equity Instruments, When the shares are retired, the capétal stock acoount is reduced by its par
vahre and the excess of cost over par value upon retirement is debited to additional paid-in
capital to the extent of the specific or average additional pald-in capltal when the shares were
issued and to retained earnings for the remaining balance.

Revenue Recognition

Fevanwe i recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits assoclated
with the transaction will flow to the Group amd the amount of revenue can be reliably
messiired, Revenue 2 measured al the falr value of the consideration received or recelvable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Group asesses (b revenue arrangements againat specific criteria in order to determine If 0t 15

acting as principal ar agent.
The following specific recognition criteria rust also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from Sale of Good's

Bevenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measwred at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.
Bevenae is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, which is normally upon delivery, and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably,

Revenue from Bendering of Services

Revenpe is recognized upon satisfactory performance of services which = manufaciuring and
bottling of HAR in favor of the customer where such production inputs are in the name of the
customer.

Others
Interest income s recogpnized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective vield on
the as=et,

Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established.

Fent income from operating leass is recopnized on a straight-line basis ower the related lease
terms. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rent income over
the term af the l=ase,

Costs and Experses
Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form

of cutfllows or decrease ol assets or incurrence of Habillities that result In decreases in equity,
other than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Expenses are recognized when
Ineurred,

share-based Payment Transactions

Under the Group's Employes Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) execubives and employees of the
Grodp recefve remuneratian in the form of share-based payment bransactions, whereby the
executives and emplovess render services as consideration for equity instruments of the
Campany. Such transactions are handied centrally by the Company.

Share-based fransactions [n which the Company grants option rights to its equity instruments
directly to the Group's employvees are acoountbed for as eguity-settled transactions.

The cost of ESPP is measured by reference to the market price at the time of the grant less
subscripdion price,
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The cost of share-based payment transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding
increass in equity, over the pericd in which the performance and/or service copditions are
fulfilled, ending on the date when the relevant employees become fully entitled Lo the award
ithe “westing date”). The cumulative expenses recognized for share-based payment transactions
at each reporting date unfil the vesting date reflect the extent to which the vesting pericd has
expiced and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity Instruments that will
ultimately west. Where the terms of a share-based award are modified, as-a minimum, an
expense is recognized as if the terms had not been modified.  In addition, an expense s
recognized for any modificabion. which increases the total fair wvalue of the share-based
payment arrangement, of s otherwise beneficial to the employes as measured at the date of
micdification.

Where an equity-sattled award is cancelled, it ks treated. as if it had wested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.

Howewver, if a new award is substitiuted for the cancelled award and designated as a
replacement award an the date that it s granted, the cancelled and rew awards are treated as U
they were a modificaticn of the original award,

Leases
The determination of wihwther an arrangement is, or contains, a lease bs based on the substance

of the arrangement and yeguires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangerent
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or asssts and the arrangement conveys a right to usga
the assst, A reassessment Is made after the inception of the lease only il one of the following

applics

{a} there iz a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

b a renewal option is exercised or an extension i3 granted, unless the term of the renswal or
extension was inidally included in the lease term;

ic) there iz a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specific
asset; or

id] thereis a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment i= made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when
thie charige in clreumatances gives rise ta (he readssssment lor scenarios (al, i) or @), and al the
date of renewral or extension pericd for scenario {b) above.

Operating Lease

Group as Lessoe, Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments
are recopnized as an expense in the consolidated statements of income on 3 straight-line bazis
over the |ease term, Associated costs such as maintenance and insurance are expensed as
incurred,

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not tranmsfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asssts are classified as operating leases. Rent income from
operating leases iz recognized as income ona straight-line basiz over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added o the carrying amount of the
leased azset and recognized as an expense ower the lease term on the same basis as rent income,
Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period in which they are earmed.



TO B
o
2015 ANNUAL REPORT [LE1= o

ERE

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the scquisition or construction of anm asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective assets. All ether borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they ocour. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
aszed are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are belng incurred, Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially ready for theirintended use.

Ressarch Costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Emplovee Benefits

Short-rerm Employes Barafits

Short-term empioyes benefitz are expensed as the relabted service 15 provided. A Hability is
recognized for the amount expected to be padd if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obllgation can be sstimated reliably,

Refirement Costs

The Company and DBl hawe separate funded, noncontributory retiremnent plans, administered
by the respective trustees. covering their respective permanent empiovess. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit retirement plan iz actuarially determined using
the projected unit credit method. Projected unit credit method reflects services rendered by
employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assumpiions concerning emplovess'
prajected salaries. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which
they occur in other comprehensive income. Such actuarlal gains and losses are also
immediately recognized in equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period.

The net defined benefit retirement Hability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the
amount of future benefit that emplovees have earned in return for their secvice in the current
and prior periods, reduced by the f&ir value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of
limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Defined banefit costs comprise the following:

*  Service costs

*  Net interest on the defined benefit retirement Hability or asset
»  Remeasurements of defined benefit retirement lability or asset

Eervice costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or lossas on non:-
routine ssftlements are recognized as expense in the consolidated statements of income. Past
service costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment oocurs. These amounts are
calculated periodically by independent qualified actuary.

Met interest on the net defined benefit retirement liability or asset iz the change during the
pericd as a result of contributions and benefit payments; which is determined by applying the
discount rate based on the pevernment bomds to the net defined benefit retirement lability or
azsat Mot interest on the net defined benefit retirement liability or asset |s recognized as
expense or income in the consolidated statements of income.

Remeasurements of net defined benefit retirement liability or asset comprising actuarial gains
and losses, return on plan assets, and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling {excluding net
interest} are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which
thiey arise,
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When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan s curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain ar loss-on curtailment is recognized immediately
in the consolidated statements of income. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the
settlernent of a defined benefit retirement plan when the settlement occurs.

Forelgn Currency

Foreign Currency Translations

Transactions n forekgn currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at ewchange rates at the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and
monetary liabdlitles denominated In foreign currencies are retransdated at the functional
currency: rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. The foreign currency gain or loss on
monetary items [s the difference betwesn amortized cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the
amoriized cost in foreign currency transiated at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Mopmonetary assets and nonmaonstacy liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
the fair value was determined. Nonmonetary iterns in foreign currencies that are measured in
terms of historical cost are translated using the exchangs rate at (he date of the trafaaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in the consolidated
statements of income, except for differences arising on the translation of AFS financial assets, a
finamcial liabdlity designated as an effective hedge of the net investment in-a foreign operation
or qualifying cash flow hedges. which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Forefgn Operations
The assets and liabilities of forelgn operations. including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to Philippine peso at exchange rates at the reporting date.

The income and expenses of forelgn operations, excluding foreign operations In
hyperinflationary economies, are translated to Philippine peso at average exchange rates for

he prerliond,

Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented In
the "Cumulative franslation adjustments” account in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. When a forelgn operation s disposed of such that control or joint control is lost, the
ctimulative amount in the cumulative transtation adfustments related to that foreign operation
is reclazsitied to the consolidated statements of Income as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

When the Group dispeses of only part of its investment in joint weriture that includes a foreign
operation while retaining joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumualative ameount is
reclassified in the consolidated statements of income.

When the settiement of a monetary item receivable from or pavabde to a foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely to occur In fthe foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses
arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in-a foreign
operation and are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented In the "Cumulative
transiation adjustments” account in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

The functional currency of GSMIL GSMIHL, GBHL and SHL is the Philippine peso, while that of
Thai San Miguel Liqguor Co, Lid, (TSML} and Thai Ginebra Trading (TGT) is the Thailand Baht
(THE]. The assets and liabilities of TSML and TGT are translated into the presentation currency
af the Company at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and their income and
expenses are transkated at the average exchange rates for the vear.
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Taxes
Current Tax Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss

for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amountsal assets and lHakdlities for fAnanclal reporting purposes and the amounts vsed
for taxation pur poses,

Diferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except;

¢ where the deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liabifity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time af the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

*  with respect to taxable temporary differences associated with investments in shares of
stock of subsidiaries and interests in joint wenkbures, where the iming of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controfled and it is probable that the termporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred fax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differemces, carryforward
benadits of unused tax cosdits - Minimum Corporate Inoome Tax (MCIT) and unused tax bosses -
Met Cperating Loss Carry Crer (MOLCDY), to the esxtent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits
of MCIT and MOLOD can b utilized, except:

=  wwhere the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
irvitial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that i= ot a business combiration
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profitor
lerss aned

¢ with respect to deductible temporary differences associated with investments in shares of
stock of subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only
to the extent that it ks probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avallable against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that suffictent taxable profit will be available to alkow all
ar part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessod
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recoversd.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover ar 22itle the carrying
amount of its assets and fliabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are meazured at the tax rates that are expected to apply o the
vear when the asset i realized or the Hahbility (s settled, based on tax rates (and tax lawes) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact
of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due, The Group
believes that its accruals for tax Labilities are adeguate for all open tax years based on its
asseqgrnent of many factors, including interpretation of tax laws and prior experience. This
aszessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about
future events. New information may become available that caisses the Group (o change fts
judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax habilities; such changes to tax labilities will
impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.
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Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in the consolidated statements of income except to
the extent that it relates toa business combination, or ftems recognized directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
sel off current tax azsets againat current tax labdlities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Value-adoed Tax (VATE Revenues; expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of
VAT, except:

»  where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable [rom the
taxation autherity, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acguisition of
the asset or as part of the expenss item as applicable; and

s peceivables and pavabbes that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net ameasnt of tax recoverable froam, or payable 8o, the taxation authority b inchuded as part
af “Prepaid expeanses and other current assefs” or "Income and other taxes payable” accounts in
the consclidated staterments of financial position.

Belated Partiey

Partles are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indivectly, to conteod
the other party or exercise significant influwence over the other party in making financial and
aperating decislons. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to comuimon
control and significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.
Transactions between related parties are on an arm'’s kength basls in a manner similar to
transactions with non-related parties

Biic anil Dilited Eamings Per Share {EPS)
Basic EPS s computed by dividing the net incorme (koas) lor the period attribatable to equity
holders of the Company, net of disddends on preferred shares, by the weighted average number
of izsoed and cutstanding cormmon shares during the period, with retroactive adjustment for
any stock dividends declared.

Diilusted EPS is computed in the samme manner, adjusted for the effects of the shares issuahle to
employvees and executives under the ESPP of the Company, which are assumed to be exercised
at the date of grant,

Where the effect of the assumed conversion of shares lssuable to ernployess and executives
under the stock purchase plan of the Company would be anti-dilutive, diluted EPS is not
presenbed,

Operating Segrments

The Group's operating segments are organized and managed separately acoording to the nature
af the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on operating
segments Is presented in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. The President (the
chief operating decision maker) reviews management reports on a regular basis.

The measurement palicies the Group used for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are the same as
those used in the consolidated financial statements. There have been no changes in the
megsurement methods wsed to determine reported segment profit or foss from prior pericds. Al
inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices,

Segment revendes, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between business
zegments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated in consclidaticn.
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Contingencics

Cantingent liatilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements, They are
dischosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits |5 remote, Contingent assets are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an infllow of economic benefits Iz profable

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional Information about the Group's financial position at
the reporting date [adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post
yvear-emd events that are not adjusting events are dischosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial staterments when material

4, Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aifect the application af
accounting policies and the amounts of assets, llabilities, income and expenses reportad in the
consolidated financial statements at the reporting date.  Howewver, uncertainty about these
judgments; estimates and assumptions could result in an outcorne that could require a material
adiustment to the carrying amount of the affected azset ar Liability in the future.

Judgments and estimates are contimually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
othet factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Rewisions are recognized in the pericd in which the judgments and
estimates are revised and in any future perlod affected.

Judernents

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
jedgments. apart fram those invelving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
ihe amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements;

Oeerating Lease Commitments - Group 25 Lessar/lassee The Group has entered into warious
Iease agreements either as a lessor or a lessee.. The Group had determined that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property leased out on operating leases whiles
the sipnificant risks and rewards for property leased from third parties are retained by the
lessars,

Rent income, recognized as part of "Other income (charges)” account in the consolidated
statements of income, amounted to P4,733, PRBOT2 and nil in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(Motes 26 and 28],

Rent expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income amounted to P145102
P153827 and P166,032 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (MNotes &, 20, 21, 22 and 28],

Ciassification of Joint Arrangemeands The Group hag determined that it has rights only to the
net assets of TASML and TGT based on the strecture, legal form, contractual terms and other facts
and circumstances of the arrangement. As such, the Group classified its joint arrangements as
joint ventures (Mote 111

Comtingencies The Group is currently involved in various pending claims and [awsuits which
coiild be decided in favor of or against the Group. The Group's estimate of the probable costs for
the resolution of these pending clatms and lavwsuits has been developed in consultation with in-
house az well as outzide legal counsel handling the prosecution and defense of these matters
and is based on an analyzis of potenilal results. The Group currently does nok believe that these
pending claims and lawsuits will have a material adverse effect on its financial position and
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financial performance, It is possible, howewer, that fufure financtal performance could be
materially affected by the changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of strategies relating
to these proceedings. Mo accruals were made in relation 1o these proceedings (Mote 34),

Estimates and Assurmptions

The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements are based
upgan management’s evaluation of relevant facts and clroumstances as of the date of the
comsolidated fimancial statemnents. Actual results could differ from such estirnates.

Fair Valoe Measuraments A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require
the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framewsrk with respect to the measurement of fair
values. This includes a valuation team that has the averall responsibility for overseeing all
gipgnificant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The valuation team
regularly reviews slgnificant unobservable Inpuls and valuation adjestments, I thivd party
information is used to measure fair values, then the waliation team assesses the evidence
obtained to support the conclusian that such valuations meet the requirements of PFRS,
including the lewel in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

The Group uzes market ohservable data when measuring the fair value of an asset or liability,
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based an the inputs
used in the valuation techniques (Mote 3),

If the Inputs used to measure the falr value of an asset or a lability can be categorized in
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized inits
entiredy In the same leve] of the [air valug hierarchy based on the lowest level input that s
sipnificant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reparting period during which the change has occurred,

The methods and astumpdions uzed to estimate the [&ir values for both financial and
nan-financial assets and lakilities are discoased in Notes 11, 12,13, 29,32, and 33,

Allowance for Impairment Losses on Trade and Other Revefvables ana Noncurrent Receivables
and Deposits Provisions are made for specific and groups of accounts, where objective evidence
of impairment exists, The Group evaluates these accounts on the basis of factors that affect the
collectability of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the
Group's relatbonship with the customers and counterparties, the current eredit status based on
third party credit reports and known market foroes, average ape of accounts, collection
experience and historical loss expecience The amount and timing of the recorded expenses for
any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different
miethodologies. An increase inthe allowance for impairmient losses would increase the recorded
general and administrative axpenses and decrease current and noncurrent assets,

The allowance for impairment osses on trade and other receivables and noncurrent receivables
and deposits, included as part of “Other noncurrent assets - net” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position, amounted to P421,168 and PE55204 a5 of December 31, 2013
and 2014, respectively.

The carrying amounits of trade and other receivables, and noncurrent receivables and deposits
amounted to P2,989.550 and P4.111.44% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014; respectively (Notes B
and 14).
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Write-down of Imvenfory, The Group writes-down the cost of inventary to net realizable value
whenever net realizable value becomes bowrer than cost due to damage. physical deterioration,
obsobescence; changes in price kevels or other cawses.

Estimates of net realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time
the estimates are made of the amount the inventories are expecied to be reallzed, Thess
estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events
occurring after the reperting date to the extent that such events confivm conditions existing at
the reporting date.

The sccumulated amount of write=down of inventores amounted to PIL748% and P37 904 as
af December 31, 2005 and 2014, respeciively,

The carrying amaunt of inventorkes amounted to PLOS0.271 and P2657,197 as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 91

Extimared Useful Lives of Property. Plant and Equipment and Deferred Containers. The Group
estimates the useful lives of property. plant and equipment and delerred containers based on
the period ower which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives
of property, plant and equipment and deferred containers are reviewed periodically and are
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates dise to physical wear and tear, technical
or commercial obsalescence and kegal or other Hmiks on the use of the asets,

In addition, estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and deferred
containers is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets. 1t is possible, however, that future Hnancial performance
could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and crcumstances. & reduction in the estimated useful
lives of property, plant and eguipment and deferred containers would increase the recorded
cost of sales, selling and marketing expanses, general and administrative expenses and decreass
noneurrent assets

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization amounted to
P5.B82427 and P6,244.426 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Accumulated
depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment amounted to P&510.264 and
P6,BE5 820 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Mote 12).

Deferred contalners, nef of accumulated amaortization, included as part of "Ciher noncurrani
aszets - net” account in the consolidated statements of financial position amounted to P285117
and P334.575 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 14}

Estimated Urafud Life of Intangible Azseis The useful life of intangible assets are assessed at the
individual asset level as having either a finite or indefinite life.

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, included as part of "Other noncarrent
asgets - net” acocount o the conselidated staternents of financlal pesitlon amounted o P44,450
and PATH0 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Accumulated amartization of
intangihle aszsets amounted to PROS09 and P43 3146 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively (Mote 14)

Impairment of Goodwill with Indefinite Usefuf Life. The Group determines whether goodwrill is
impaired at least annually. This cequires the estimation of value in use of the cash-generating
umits o which the goodwill s allocated, Estimating valse in ase reguires management to maks
an estirmate af the expected futures cash flows from the cash-generating unik and to chooss a
zuitable discount rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows,
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The carrying amount of goodwill amounted (o PL26,8563 and P2256.843 as of December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively (Note 13,

Acguisition Accounting. The Group accounts for acguired businesses using the acguisition
method of accounting which requires that the assets acquired and the labilities assumed are
recognized at the date of acquisition based cn their respective fair values.

The application of the acquisition method requires certain estimates and assomptions
concerning the determination of the fair values of acguired intangible assets and property,
plant and eguipment, as well as liabilities assumed at the aoquisition date, Moregver, the usaful
lives of the acquired intangible assets and property, plant and equipment have fo be
determined. Accordingly, for significant acquisitions, the Group obtains assistance from
valuation specialists. The valuations are based on information available at the acquisition date,

The Group recognized goodwill arising from an acquisition in 2002 (Moke 134

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reparting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that It is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized, The Group's assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assels on deductible
temporary difference and carryforward benefits of MCIT and HMOLOD is bazsed on the projected
taxable incotne in the fallowing periods.

Deferred tax assets amounted to FEI0305 and P1116010 as of December 31, 2005 and 2014,
respectively (Mota 18|

Impairmenit of Non-financial Assetz PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed
on investments in joint ventures, property. plant and sguipment, intangible assets, deferred
containers and idle assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amourt may not be recoverable. Determining the recoverable amounts of these asscts requires
the estimation of cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate
disposition of such assets. While it is believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of
fair values reflected in the consolidated financial statements are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recowerable
amotints amd any resulting impaiiment loss could have a material adverse impact on the
finamncial perfarmance.

Accurmalated impairment losses on investment in joint wentures and property, plant and
equipment ameunted to P323.800 and PR07.E00 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
(Motes 11 and 12).

The combined carrying amounts of [nvestrments in joint ventures, property, plant and
equipmient, intangible assets, deferred containers and idle assets amounted to P&.432.244 and
P&.¥34,67% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively [(Notes 11, 12 and 14),

Presamt Value of Defined Benefit Retirement Ohfigation, The present value of the defined
benefit retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumplions. These assumptions are deseribed in Nate 22 to
the consolidated financial staterments and include discount rate and salary increass rate.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each reporting period. It iz the
imterest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
cutflows expected to be reguired fo settle the rerirement chligations. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates on government bonds that are
denorninated fn the currency in which the benefits will be paid. The terms to maturity of these
bonds should approximate the terms-of the pelated retirement obligation
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Other key assumptions for the defined benefit retirement obligation are based in part on
current market conditions,

While it 15 belleved that the Group's assumptions are reasonable and apgropriate, significant
differenices in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect the
Grodp's defined Benafit retirement obligation,

The present value of defined benefit reticement obligaticn amounted to PLO7435 and
PT43ABE as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Mate 29).

Asset Retirement Obiigation. Determining ARO requires estimation of the cogts of dismmantling,
installing and restoring leased properties to their original condition. The Group determined that
there are no significant AROD as of Decemnber 31, 2015 and 2014, While it is believed that the
assumptions wsed in the estimation of such costs are reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the recorded expense or ebligation in future periods.

5 Segreent Inforration

The reporting format af the Group's operating segments is determined based on the Group's
risks and rates of return which are affected predominantly by differences in the products and
sarvices produced. The operating buszinesses are arganized and managed separately according
to the nature of the products produced and services provided, with each segment representing a
strabegic business unit that offers different produets and serves different markets.

The Grodap i3 organized Into two major- operating segments namely akleoholic and NAB,
The aleohalic segment produces and markets alcoholic beverages.
The nonaleohalic segment is invalved in the production and marketing of NAB.

For each of the operating segments, the chief operating decision maker reviews inbernal
management reports on at least monthly basis,

sepment Agsets and Liakilitieg

Sepment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist primarify of aperating
cash, trade and other vecefvables. [nventories, assets held for sale and property, plant and
equipment, net of allowances. accumulated depreciation and amortization, and impairment.
Segment liabilities inchuede all operating Liabilities and consist primarily of lrade and other
payables and imcorme and other taxes payable. Segment assets and liabiliies do not include
deferred taxes,

Major Customer
The Group does nat hawe a single external customer from which sales revenue penerated

amounted to 10% or more of the total revenes of the Group,

The Group’s revenue from external customers and noncurrent assets are mainly in the
Phitippines
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&,  Discontinued Operation

O Decermnber 5, 2014, the BOD of GSMI authorized the sale and transfer of certain NAB assets
of the Company o SME, a related party, consisting of property, plant and equipment as of
Decermnber 31, 2004 and inventories as of March 31, 2015 (Transaction”). As such, the Company
reclassifled the fallowing MAB assets as held for sale as of December 31, 2014

Note 2014
Praperty and equipment i2 P193,941
Finished guudﬂ and other inwventories 353,765
Assets held for sale P547, 704

In 2015, the Company received a total of P445642 for the sake of the assets used in its HAB
business and executed the following: (a) Deed of Sale of property, plant and equipment ("NAB
PPE"} executed on April 1, 201% and (o) Deed of Sale of finished goods inventories and other
inventories consisting of containers on hand, raw materials. goods-in-process and packaging
materials executed on April 30, 2015, The purchase price i3 net of adjustments to the price of the
MAB PPE after subsequent walidation and confirmation by the parties. As a result of the
Transaction, the Group recognized a gain amounting to P37 334, included as part of "Galn on
sale of property and equipment” account.

Certain acomints in the consclidated statements of income hawve been reclassified to show the
discontinued operations separately from continuing operations. Details of the discontinued
operations for 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows

2015 2014 A3
Sales F73,03 Pos0, 0 Prazog
Cost of sales 61,967 413173 496,920
Gross profit 11064 176921 223170
Selling and marketing expenses (65,174) (323145 1362 792)
General and administrative expenses [11,593) (45,1438 [45,557)
Gain on sale of property and
gquipment 37334 192 193
Other income icharges) - net (2382 184 11,3469
Loz belfore inoome tax (30,753) (190, %98) (171457}
Income tax benefit (5,226 (57,275 (51,497}
et loss (P21,527) (P133.699) (P120,160)
Basic and Diluted Logs Per Share (P08 (PO.AT] (PO.43)

The net cash flows used in operating activities of MAB segment amounted to [P3137), (F2755)
and [P2,084] n 20715, 2014 and 2013, respectively,

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Note 2015 2014
Cash in banks and on hand P273,301 P289.731
Short-term investments 172,500 ZP0.184

32 33 Pa45,801 PTR 1T
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Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rabes.  Short-term investments
include demand deposits which can be withdrawn at anytime depending on the immediate
cash requirernents of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term investment rates.

B.  Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables consist of:

MNote 2015 2014

Trade PZ.104,005 P2.988.257

Ammoiants owed by relabed parties 27 B304 L0280

Non-trade 31 201,794 202 217

3,126,573 4,110,742

_Less allowance for impairment losses 324,361 189,274

a2 33 P2802.212 P3.521 468

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a &0 to ?0-day term.

Mon-trade receivables consist of the following: (i) advances to supplier ameunting to P1,5%8 and
P1,252 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively: (il subscription receivables amounting to
P35 and P4.975 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively; (iil) receivable from employees
amounting fo P18.471 and F24.121 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively; (iv) sale of
raw materials amounting to P130926 and P130TB1 as of December 31, 2015 amd 2014,
respectively; and (v} miscellaneous receivables amounting to P524484 and P41088 as of
Decernber 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, These are generally collectible on demand.

The movements in allowance for impalrment losses are as follows

MNate 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year Pig%.274 Fi0E1%4
Provision for impairment losses 22 152 883 BLOBO
Armoin s written aff 117,794} -
Batance at end of year F324,351 PR 274
The aging of trade and other receivables is as follows:
Amounts
Crwred by
December 31, 2015 Trade Mon-trade Related Parties Total
Current PF14,942 F18,385 P30,735 PRée4,062
Past due:
Less than 30 days 852,173 6,756 3,547 S624T76
30 - &0 days 152,970 7807 13,5840 174,217
&1 =90 days 15374 208 4,057 19,641
_Ower M days 368544 2 168838 0000 TEBTIS 1306177

P2104005  P201,794 PEINTT4  PA126573
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Amounts

Crwed by
_December 31, 2014 Trade  Mon-trade  Related Parties _Total
Current P1.755719 PE195 PATTO PLT7H.684

Past due:

Lessthan 30 days 567,311 3595 18,859 SET A5
30 - &0 days 114,324 8,068 10,040 132432
&1 - 90 days 59,355 2294 22632 84,283
Creer 90 davs 491,548 T3 043 BE0.957 1525578
P2.088.257 P202217 Poa0, 258 P4110.742

Variouws collaterals [or trade receivables such as bank guarantees, cash bond, time depesit and
real estate mortgages are hald by the Group for certain credit limits.

The Group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are
still collectible based on historical payment behavior and analyses of the underlying customer
credit ratings, There are no significant changes in their credit quality (MNote 32),

9. Inwventories
Inventories consist of:
2015 2014
At MREV:
Finished goods P&&3.037 Pas3 a3
Materials and supplies 2388643 1793574
Containers 38,591 =

F3,090.271 P2AST197

The cost of fnished goods and materials and supplies amounted to P3,36%.349 and P2,795101 ag
of Drecember 31, 2015 and 2014, respactivaly,

The amount of inventories recognized as expense amounted to PIOATZ 125, PP 435825 and
P9.140.314 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (Note 20,

The write-down of imnentories to net realizable value amounted to PI95683 and PEE000 in
2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 20). The Group has written off inventories amounting to
P15#18 in 2015

The aecuwmulated amount of write-down of Inventories ameunted to P317.4659 and PLAT,504 as
of Drecember 31, 2015 and 2014, respectivaly,

10, Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of;

Note 2015 2014
Proepaid taxes PL538,778 PLS17,112
Derivative assets 2 a3 430 52

P1,589,238 P1569,041

Prepaid taxes represent prepayments of excise taxes on alcohal and income taxes.
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11 Investments in Joint Venturs
a. TSML

GEMI, through GSMIL, has an existing joint venture with Thai Life Group of Companies
(Thai Life} covering the ownership and operations of TESML. TSML is a limited company
organtzed under the laws of Thailand in which GSMIL owmns 40%% ownership interest,
TSML holds a leense in Thaikand to engage in the business of manufacturing aleohal and
manufacturing, selling and distributing brandy, wine and distilled spirits products both for
domestic and export markets

Through the acquisition by SHL of the 49% ownership interest in Siam Wine Liguor Co.,
Ltd. [SWL) and SWL's acquisition of shares representing 10% ownership of the culstanding
capital stock of TSML the Group's share in TSML increased from 40% to 44.9%. The
acquisitien was funded through advances made by GEMI to GBEHL, which has an existing
loan agresment with SWL for the same amount.

Surmnmarized financial informatdon of TSML, as included in its own financial statements,
arvd the reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment are set out below:

s 24 23

Current assets (including cash and cash equivalents -
2015: P199.953, 2004 P103ET and 2013 P141473) PL357.379 P1LIBZ143  PLIIRIOE
Moncurrent assets 1,349,782 1510106  L&IZ05Z

Current Habdlithes including current financial labilitles

excluding trade and other papables and poovisions -

21T PES0ATE {105,528 {2%.659) [71B2%N
Moncurrent labilives fincluding roneurrent financial

labdlities excluding trade and ot her payables and

provisions < 2015 P 240 200, 2004; F1252. %50 and

2012 P07 815) 11.240,700] [1253,796)  |609122)
Het assets 138003 1488792 LAO3RE4
Percentage of ewnership 44.5% 44.9% 14.9%
Arcount ol [nvestment En joint wenture 511,080 457,488 Ta08%
Less: Allowance for impairment loss 84,200 : =
Carrying amount af investment injodnt venture P524B50  P&5%48E P720,.18%

2005 2014 2013
Sabes PLA95,033  PBa7.5% PLI24174
Cost of sales |lncluding depreciation -

2015 P111.751 2044: Pi14,843 and 203 P115.784) (LI20.48%  iBsI95 [LIT1ES
Operating expenses fincluding depreclation -

05 PS04, 2014: P4 430 and 2013; P4.783) 71,435} (720 C100. A28
Other charges {including interest expense

5015 Pod 454, 2014: PSEOSE and 2015 P47 49 155,393} {28 514) 7TT
Het loss (52.264)  [147.583 {154,500
Percentage of swnership A 95 4455 A4 5%
Share in et loss {23.447) 154 245) 74,743
Share in other campeelenalive inoome (loss) (24971 5544 &9

Total comprehensive loss (P48,438) {Fﬁﬂ?ﬂ“:l (P54
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The recoverable amount of Investrnent in TSML has been determined based on a vaheation
using cash flow projections covering a five-yviear pericd based on long range plans approved
by management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a constant
growth rate determined per individual cash-generating unit. This growth rate is consistent
with the long-term average grawth rate for the Industry, The dizcount rates applied to after
tax cazh Flow projections is 9% in 2015, The dizcount rate also imputes the risk of the cash-
generating units compared to the respective risk of the overall marked and equity risk
PrerieL

&5 a result of decline in operations resulting in lower sales forecast compared with previous
years, the Group recognized Impalrment loss amounting to PSS 200 1n 2015 Included as part
of “Equity in Wet Losses of Joint Ventures” account, in the consolidated statements of
bncome. The recoverabls amount of investment in TSML has been categorized as Level 3in
the fair value hisrarchy based cn the inputs used in the valuation technigue (Mote 4L

TGT

GEMYL, through GSMIHL also has an existing 40% ownership interest in TGT, which was
formed as another [oint venture with Thal Life  TGT functions as the selling and
distribution arm of TSML.

Through the acquisition of SWL of the 10% ownership interest in TGT, the Group's share in
TGT increased from 40% to 44.9% The actuisition was funded through advanoes made by
GEMI to GEHL wwhich haz an existing loan agreement with SWL for the same amount,

Summarized financial information of TGT, as included in its own financial statements, and
the recanciliation with the carrving amoant of the Investment are set out balow;

205 g 213
Current xsseds fncluding cash and cash equivalenis -

S5 Fa6,136 2004 P05 and 20r13: Pa1.90=) Py R PRS2 Fil5156
Honcurrent assets SATE 5404 57E1
Current Habilities [TB5 937 AT 7] (B8 07
Moncurrent labilities incuding nonsurrent financial

Babilites exchading trade and other pawables and provisicns

2005 PR 2004 Pi3s and 2002 PUS 1299 (1341 [y
et llabiities (740, 464) (7E7AET] Tea1a
Peroondage of cemership 44 ¥ 4.5 A48
Carrylng amenant of investment in jomit vendwre (P332 45E) (FE3RFFn  (PIZAS5H

S 204 M3
Zales P41 Plr4s08  F2oegl40
Cost of sales {58,359 (157 a0 (RITAT
Cperating expenses (inchuding depreciation -

2005 PISA, 2014: PISS and 2010 P229 (23,986 f41,314) [k LEE ]
et loas (14.354) (23,5141 7118
Perceniape of ownerchip 44 9%, A4, 5 44 5L
Shuare b et bosa i6,445) (10555 35,524

_Share in other comprehensive income (loesh (13,954) 2463 Lo
Tatal cempreheraive o (P20,39%) (Pa.OWE) [PE4.637)

The Group discontinued recognizing its share in the net liahilities of TGT since the
cumulakive losses including the share in cther comprebensive loss already exceed the cost
of investment. If TGT reports profits subsequently, the Group resumes recognizing its share
of those profits after its share of the profits equals the share of net losses not recognized.
Unrecognized share in net liabilities amounted to P332 448 and F3392.577 as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively,
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The carrying amounis of unutilzed machinery and equipment, net of aocumulated impairment
loeses of P07 &00 in 2005 and 2014, amounted to P35,764 and P68,630 as of December 31 2015
and 2014, respectively.

The recowerable amount was determined by an independent property appraiser having
appropriate recognized professional qualifications and recent experience in the category of the
property being valued. The fair value of the property being appraised was determined using
the replacement cost model. This approach considers the cost to reproduce or replace in new
condition the assets appraised in accordance with current market prices af materials. labor,
contractor's owerhead, profit and fees, and all other attendants costs associated with its
acquisition and installation in place. Adjustment i then made for accrued depreciation as
evidenced by the observed condition and present and prospective serviceahility in comparison
with the new similar units,

The fair value of the distillation equipment has been categorized as Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigques,

I 2015, the Group sold certain properties located in Calumpit, Bulscan and Tagoloan, Misamis
Criental for P139.658. The Group recognized a gaim amounting to P125.531, included as part of
"Gain on sale of property and equipment” account in the 2015 consolidated statements of

income.

Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses recognized in the consolidated statements of
income amounted to PS&7 409, 16,045 and PAEZE10 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
These amounts include annual amortization of capltalized interest amounting to P12.072,
P11.841 and P11LA37 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Interest amounting to F24T1, P2.310 and P2,042 were capitalized to machinery and equipment
in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (Note 25, The capitalization rates used (o determine the
amount of interest eligible for capitalization were 4.35%, 488% and 5469% in 2015 2014 and
2013, respectively. The unamortized capltalized borrowing costs amounted to P53,636 and
P&3.23T as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

13 Goodwrill

In 2012, GSMI acquired 100% of the autstanding capital stock of EPSEFR] for P200,000. EPSEF],
which iz considered a CGL, is a company primarily engaged in the manufacturing and bottling
af alcohollc beverages amd MNAE The acguisition resulted in the recognition of goodwill
amounting to FZ246, 863

The recoverabie amount of goodwill has been determined based on a valuation using cash flow
projections covering a five-yvear period based on leng range plans approved by management.
Cash flows beyond the five-yvear pericd are extrapolated using a conmstant growth rate
determined per individual cash-generating unit, This growth rate is consistent with the long-
term average growth rate for the industry, The discount rates applied to after tax cash flow
projections ranged from 9% to 12% in 2015 and 2014, The discount rate also imputes the risk of
the cash-generating units eompared to the respective risk of the averall market and equity risk
premium. As a result of decline in operations resulting in lower sales forecast compared with
previous years, the Group recognized impairment loss amounting to F100,000 in 2015 (Hote 24),
The recoverabie amount of goodwill has been categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation technique (Mote 4},
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The calculations of value in use are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

Gross Margins  Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the period
Irmmedlately before the budeet period. These are increases over the budget perbod for
anticipated efficiency improvements. Values assipned to key assumptions reflect past
experienos, except lor efficlency Impravement,

Dfscount Rates. The Group uses the weighted-average cost of capital as the discount rate,
which reflects management's estimate of the risk specific to each unit This iz the
benchmark wsed by management to assess operating performance and 1o evaluate future
tnwvestrnents proposals,

Raw Marerial Price infiation. Consumer price forecast is obtained from indices during the
budget period from which raw mabterials are purchased. Values assigned to key
assumptions are consistent with external sources of information,

14. Other Noncurrent Assets

Oither noneurrent assets consist of-

Note 2015 2014
Deferred contalners - net F288,117 P334,575
Noncurrent receivables and deposits - net LR 0 187,338 182981
Intangible aasets 44 450 179
Others 269118 297 3BA

P787.023 PE25T32

Momcurrent recelvables and deposits - net include: (i) trade recelvabie referred to legal and
receivables from terminated deakers amounting to P33,594 and P35,358 as of December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively, net of allowance for impairment lesses amounting to PRSE0T and
P&5930 as of December 3L 2015 and 2014, respectively. Provizion for impairment losses
amounted to P3116% and ndl in 2015 and 2014, respectively (Mote 22), The Group has written-off
receivables amounting to P292 in 2015; and (i) security deposits to related parties amounting to
P485 as of Decernber 31, 2015 and 2014 Mate 271

The movements in intangible assets are as follows:

2015 2014
Cost
Balance at beginning of year Pa7.104 P42.050
_Reclassitication 47,953 5036
Balance at end of year 25,059 47 104
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 43,316 42,050
Armortization 7.2%3 1.266
Balance at end of year 50,4609 43,314
Carrying Amount P44, 450 P30

Amortization expense, included as part of "General and administrative expenass” account [n the
consolidated statement: of income, amounted to P7293 and PL266 im 2015 and 2014,
respectively (Mote 22,
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Others include: (i) input taxes on the acquisition of capitalizable assets amounting to P4,972 and
P33240 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively; and (i) advances for a project that is
ternporarily put on hold amounting to P264,144 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

15. Notes Payable

This account consists of unsecured short-term peso-denominated borrowings obtained from
local banks for working capital requirements. These loans mature in three months or less and
bear annual interest rates ranging from 2% to 4.75% and 3% to 5.75% in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Interest expense and other financing charges recognized in the consolidated statements of
income amounted to P471,423, P4959463 and P556,641 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(Note 25).

The Group's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are discussed in Note 32,

16. Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables consist of:

Note 2015 2014
Trade F1,706,869 P1679576
Amounts owed to related parties a7 529,052 649,257
Derivative liabilities 32 33 128 360
32 33 P2,236,049 P2,329,193

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30-day term.

17. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Floating interest rate based on PDST-F
plus margin or BSP overnight rate,
whichever is higher, with maturities
up to 2018 P342,857 P457,143
Less current maturities 114,286 114,284
32 .33 P228,571 P342 857

G5MI, through EPSBPI, has an unsecured, long-term interest bearing loan with a local bank
amounting to P800,000. The proceeds of the loan was used to finance the construction of the
bottling facilities in Ligao, Albay and Cauayan, Isabela.

The loan is payable up to nine years from and after the initial date of borrowing, but in no case
later than September 30, 2018 (expiry date of memorandum of agreement), inclusive of a grace
period of two years on principal repayment. The loan is payable in equal quarterly installments
on the Principal Repayment Dates which commenced on February 18, 2012,
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EFSBF] agrees to pay interest on the cutstanding principal amount of borrowings on each
interest payment date ending per annum eguivalent to the higher of benchmark rate plus a
spread of one percent or the overnight rate. Benchimark rate is the three-month PDST-F rate as
dizplayed in the Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporatlon page on the fiest day of each
interest pericd. While overnight rate means the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas overnight reverse
repo rate on interest rate settling date,

The movement in debi ssue costs is as follows:

2014
Balance at beginning of year L1668
Amortization [2166)
Ealanice at end of year P -

Interest expense on long-term bormowings amounted o PI7.207, Pad &S0 and P10E 300 [n 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Eepavment Schedule
The annual maturities are as follows:

Year Gross Amount
2014 Pl 286
2017 114 2845
2018 114 285

P342857

Contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and exposure to interest rate and
liguidity risks are discussed in Mote 32,

1 Income Taxes

Dieferred tax assets arise from the following:

2015 2014
Items recognized in profit or loss

MOLCO P157.63% P&T33ST
MCIT 165,094 78,458
Provision for impatrment lossag 251178 171,209
Allowance for write-down of inventories 25,301 41,371
Past service coats 30,472 19,890
Various accraals 17,788 85594
Unreallzed foreign exchange loss (gain) - net &25 (B33
Derivative liabilities (assets) - net (0] 23
et defined benefit rétirement obligation (surplus) {4,58%) 7 A5
Unamortized capitalized borrowing costs (156,090} (18,971]
697,348 1,057 B&4

Items recognized directly in other comprehensive income
Equity reserwe for retirement plan 112 957 58144
P&10,305 P1L116,010
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The movements of the net deferred tax assets are accounted for as follows:
2015 2014
Amount charged to profit or loss (P360,514) (P415453)
Amount charged to ather comprehensive income 54811 20987
[F305,T05) (P3P4.558)

As af December 31, 2015, the MNOLCD and MCIT of the Group that can be claimed as deduction

from future taxable income and deduction from corporate income tax due, respectively, are as

followes:
Carryforward
Year Incurred,/Paid Benefits Up To ROLCOD MCIT
213 December 31, 2014 P1.508.357 PS7.903
2014 December 31, 2017 18,085 78,128
2015 December 31, 2018 P25 as8.2a7

P1,536,378 P224.258

As of December 31, 2015, deferred tax asset has not been recognized in respect of NOLOD and
MCIT amounting to PLO10%15 and P59 1464, respectively, as management believes it is not
probable that future tacable income will be available against which the Group can utilize the
benefit therefrom.

The camponents of income tax expense (benefit) from contimeing operations are shown below,

2015 2014 2013

Current P149,380 P105,102 P105,995
Deferred 360,516 472,953 (462.646)
PS0Y.894 P578,055 (P352647)

The income tax expense from continuwlng cperations exclude the Group's share of the income
tax benefit from the discontinued operation of PY.228, P57.299 and P51,497 in 2015 2014 and
2013, respectively, which have been included in loss from discontinued operation, net of tax
(Note &),

The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate on income before income tax and the
Group's effective income tax rate ks as follows

2015 2014 2013
Statutory income tax rate 30.00% F0.00% FL00%
Increase [decrease) in income tax rate
resulting from:
Interest income subject to final tax (0.B2%) (0:12%) [010%)
_ Others 320.48% FLI0S.A5%) [3.45%)

Effective Income tax rate 349 .66% iLﬂﬁ;i.E'?%:l 25445
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19. Equity
A Capital Stock
Commoen Shares

The Commpany has 4600000000 suthortzed common shares with par value of P1 per share
and offer price of P12.28 and P15.88 az of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The holders of common shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
tirme and are entitled to one vale per share at meetings of the Company,

The Company has a total of 728 and 738 stockholders as-of December 31, 2015 and 2014,

respectively.
The movements in the number of jssued and outstanding shares of common stock are as
follows
2015 2014
Izsued and outstanding shares at beginning of year 345425332 245625332
Less treasury shares 59,297.491 59297491
[asued and outstanding shares at end of year 285,327 B41 286, 32T 841

Preferred Shares

The Company has 100,000,000 authorized preferred shares with par valee of P1per share
asof December 21, 2015 and 2014,

The holders of preferred shares are entitled to participate and recebve annual dividends of
FL150 per share which shall be cumulative and pavable in arrears on Decembber 31 of each
year. In addition, the holders of preferred shares shall recelve a special annual dividend
equal to the excess of the aggregate dividends paid or to be paid to common sharcholders
over FLED per prefermed share per annun. The holders of prefereed shares are entitled (o
wote in the same manner as the holders of common shares.

The movements In the number of swed and outstanding shares of preferred stock are as

follows=
2015 2014
lssued and cutstanding shares at baginning of year 53,437,585 53437 585
Less treasury shares 20,650,700 20,650,700
Issued and outstanding shares at end of year 32,786,885 32784885
& Treasury Shares
Treasury shares consist of
2015 2014 2013
Commmon 59,297 471 5929747 55549371
Preferred 20,650,700 20,450,700 20,550,700
79.948.191 7948191 76200091
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The movements in the number of commmon shares held in treasury are as follows
2015 014 2013
Mumber of shares at
beginning of yvear 59297491 55549371 55549391
Cancellation of ESFP = Aerad. 100 .
59297471 520749 55549 391

¢ Unappropriated Retained Earnings
Mo dividends were declared in 2015 and 2014,

The unappropriated retained earnings of the Group includes the accumulated earnings in
subsgidiaries and equity in net losses of joint ventures amounting ta P254 350, P272 32% and
PI07295 in 2015 2014 and 2013 respectively. Such amounts areé not available for
declaration as dividends until declared by the respective investess,

The unappropriated retained earnings of the Group B restricted in the amount of
P2&67.973 in 2015 and 2014 and P2.579,409 in 2013, representing the cost of commaon and
preferred shares held in treasury

dl  Approprisled Rerained Exrnings

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company's BOD approvesd the appropriation of
retained earnings amounting to P2,500,000 for the purpose of capital investment for the
expansion of the plant facilities, including bat not limited to equipment rehabilitation; to
accommodate new product line and the increase in woluwme reguirements in the next thres

to tive yoars.
20. Cost of Sales
Caost of sales consist of:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Inventories 2 P10672125 2 PR4I%E2S  PR140314
Utilities and supplies 487,832 415674 538,438
Depreciation and
amaortization 223 302,378 300250 #30,521
Write-down of inventories to
ret realizablbe value 7 195,683 GE.000 -
Chutzide zervices e 174,084 223414 205385
Personnel 24 29 156,404 1452308 17445
Repairs and maintenance 153173 26,480 105,573
Rent 28 31,759 35954 BiBTE
Insurance &, 668 45003 4428
CHbers 1,658 18104 A7 426
P12181,764 PIO947.315 P1D735408
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21, Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses consist of:

Nove 2045 2014 2013
Adwvertizing and promotions PEOZ 064 F727.348 P943373
Delivery and marketing 493,705 54483 531.082
Persomnel 24 29 212841 181,475 203473
Dutside services BB 447 24198 121335
Rent 28 &2.737 58,258 H1200
Utilities and supplies 39905 54 205 &0.461
Depreciation and
amaortization 1223 40,886 28,265 49916
Repairs and maintenance 31410 24078 25067
Travel and transportation 27178 19,853 26,016
Corporate special program 24,943 15859 B4.227
Others 11,572 11,030 10,257
Pl1.842.708 PL757.410 P2116413
22 General and Adminlstrative Expensss
General and administrative expenses consist of:
MNote 2015 2014 2013
Personnel 282 P&dB.s12 PSr1.237 P543938
Depreciation and amortization 17 14 23 28971 294,933 188144
Chitside services 27 273761 FAFAL S AT 06
Taxes and licenses 184 5%6 1456571 108,054
Provision for impairment losses & 14 184,052 B1.080 -
Insurance 82 479 B4.035 70329
Repairs and maintenance 55,755 25918 195
Rent 28 40,440 52255 146,870
Corporate special program 35274 37163 71198
Utilitles and supplies 34,574 & B9 31,523
Research 33,142 30,443 15726
Travel and transportation 22,639 19947 20503
Others &, 228 5081 2,385
18925963 Fl1.662472 P1LAs7 573

23, Depreciation and Amertization

Depreciation and amortization from continuing operations consist of;

Note 2015 2014 2013

Property. plant and equipment 1z P567 609 P5&6,448 P&34.224

Fallats 58,153 45982 24,265
Others 14 7,293 12818 10092

P&33,055 P&25,448 Pés8 581
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Depreciation and amortizaticn from continuing operations are distributed as follows:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Cost af sales a0 P302,378 Pa00.250 P430.521
Selling and marketing expenses 21 40,885 28,265 47,714
General and administrative
EXpEnses g 289,791 296533 188144

P633,055 P&25.448 P66E 581

24, Personne] Expenses

Personnel expenses from continuing operations consist of

o Nuote 2015 M4 0000 2013
Salaries and wapes Pédd 133 PeaT 382 P03 304
Employes berefits 297 488 252043 Zh%.B5%
Retirement costs 29 56236  s84% 63691

P1,017,857 Pag7.921 PR26,856

Personnel expenses from continuing operations are distributed as follows:

Note 2015 2014 2013

Cost of sales a0 F1556.404 P145.209 P17%.445
Selling and markellng expenses 21 212,841 181475 03473
General and adminisirative expenses 22 548,612 571237 543938
F1.017.8B57 PRI7 921 P24 BS54

25, Interest Expense and Other Financing Charges

Interest expense and ofher finaneing charges consist ol

Note 2015 2014 2013
Interest on notes payable 15 P471,423 P495 263 Fa5a641
Interest on long-term debit 17,207 G650 103,30
Capitalized borrowing costs 12 (2.471) (2,310) (2.042)

P4&6,15% PS60,313 P57 899
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26, Other Income (Charges)

Other incame {charges) consist of:

Note 2015 2014 2m3
Gain on =ale of scrap materials P24,742 P2%,360 P27 254
Tolling fees 24 942 10,270 3,985
Rent income 28 4,733 o2 -
Loss on sale of molasses and alcohol . (46,343} .
Gain (loss) on derivatives a3 (702} [2.459) 1.007
Foreign exchange gain (loss) {2,081) 2778 3441
Provizion for impalrment loss i (100,000) - -
Others (2,519) [3.654) 15,945)
(P50,885) (P1576) P30,332

27. Related Party Disclosures

The Group purchase products and services from and sells products to related parties.
Transactions with related parties are made at normal market prices and terms. An assessment
is undertaken at each financial year by examining the financial position of the related party
and the market in which the related party operates.

The [ollowing are the transactions with related parties and the outstanding balances as of

Diecemibar 31:
Revenus  Purchases Amounts  Amopunts
from from  Oweed by Crared 1o
Ralated Balated Pelated Related
Ye=ar  Parties Parties Parties Parties Terms Conditions
Praremd Company 3NS5  PA.245 P254 803 4305 P40OE  Omoddemand; Urssecuired;
24 1093 253184 23399 DEEPE  nem-irberes| B impaiemeant
2013 20805 193560 J1.487 123511  DBearing
Upder Common 3MS§ STF008 el 251 03 43021 Omdemand; Uirsecured;
Cantnal o B R 08207 233413 253257  nonsinterest R impalrmasnt
263 4g01%2 237557 211071 4387 Bearing
Joinet Vembure 5 - - &3 a1 - O demand:; i resescured:
2HMa - a2 01 Inderest oo impairment
203 a7 boaring
A b i E BET.20N 3 mchiths Ulrnscured
of the Parent 24 - J0ATEES Inderest
—Company 2013 3 : z 2177200 Bearing
015 PSE4A. 1 PRSETTRI PEEDTTE  PL414.252
M4 PADIR o B e P75l PIARG T2
M3 PENFET FAOMISES Pa%A3 FlE9s47a

a The Group, in the normal course of business, has significant transactions with related
parties pertaining to purchases of containers, bottles and other packaging materials and sale
of liquor and by-products The zales to and purchases from related parties are made at
normal market prices. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any
amounts owed by and owed Lo related parties,

b, The Group has enbered into warious lease agreements with related partles as a lessor and

lessee (Mote 281

c. DMManagement fees amounting to P18%.343, FIBLB25 and P170,567 in 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, are included in "Outgide services” account under "General and administrative
expenses” (Mote 22,
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d. Security deposits amounted to P985 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are
included as part of "Moncurrent receivables and deposits - net” under "Cither noncurrent
assets - net” account in the conzsolidated statements of financial position [(Mote 141,

e TEML executed variows promissory notes in Eavor of the Company. The details of which are
45 follows:

o Principal sum of THBE250,000.000 together with interest of 5.5% per annum. which
imterest shall accree on MMarch 13, 2014,

o Principal sum of THBE50,000.000 together with interest of 5.0% per annum, which
interest shall accrue on September 2, 2013

o Principal sum of THB25,D00,000 together with interest of 50% per annum, which
interest shall accrue on June 14, 2013,

o Principal sum of THBE?S,000,000 together with interest of 30% per annum, which
interest shall accrue on Septermber 4, 2081,

& Principal sum of THB?S,000,000 together with interest of 30% per anoum, which
interest shall accrue on Aprll 7, 2041,

The principal sum ks due and payalale in full on demand af the Campany and the stipulated
tnterest shall be payable every thres months

The receivables from TSML are included as part of “Amounts owed by related parties”
uwnder "Trade and other receivables - net” aceount fn the consolidated statements of
financial position (Mote 8},

Interest income firem amounts owed by TSML recognized in the consolidated stabements of
income, amounted to P26,650, P19, 796 and P4,658 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

. Amounts owed to Bank of Commerce are incluoded in “Motes payable® account in the
consolidated statements of financial position Note 15),

g Thecompensation of key management personnel af the Group, by beneflt type, follows:

MNode 2015 2014 2013
Short-term empéoyes benefits P43401 Pas.A74 F31.689
Retirement cosks a2 &.540 5215 5283
Share-based paymenis il - - iyl

Pag 941 Pa2,089 P37.343

28. Leasing Agreements
Qperating Leases
Gironip as Lessor
o The Company has an exlsting lense agressment with a related party lor the lease of 8 parcel

of land in Cabuyap, Laguna for a period of three years from February I, 2013 to January 31,
2014, Rental fee amounted to P194 per manth,

b The Company alse has another lease agreement with a related party for the lease of a parcel
of land in Sta. Barbara, Pangasinan for a period of three years from July 1, 2013 to June 30,
2014 Bental fee amounted o P200 per month

Eent income recognized in the consolidated statements of income amounted 1o P4.733, PBOTL
and nil in 2015, 2014 and 2013, rexpectively [MNote 28],
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Grovp as Lesseo
& The Company leases various warehouwse facilities under operating leases. These leases
typically run for a period of one year, The Company has the option to renew the lease after

the explration of the leass term,

I EPSBPI has waricus lease agreements. with related parties far the lease of parcels of band
Iotated in Ligao City, Albay and Cauayan, Isabela for a period ranging from five to ten years
and renewable upon mutual agreement of both parties. Rental fees are payable monthly
and subject to 5% escalation every year.

c.  In 2011, EPSEPl entered into lease agreements to use various eguiprment for a period of thres
years with the option to renew after expiration of the lease term. Rental fees are payable
on a monthly basis, In 2014, the lease agresments were extended for another period
ranging from nine months toone year,

Mon-cancellable lease pavables are as follows:

2015 2014
Within one year P4.234 P4,032
After one year but not more than five years 7420 11654

P11.654 P15.684

Rent expense recognized in the consolidated statements of fncome amounted to P145102
PAG3AYT and P166,032 in 2015, 2014 and 3013, respectively (Motes &, 20, 21 and 22)

29. Retirement Flans

The Company and DBl hase funded, moncontributory, defined bepefit retirement plans
icollectively, the Retiterment Plans) covering all of their permanent employees, The Retirement
Plans of the Group pay out benefits based on final pay. Contributions and costs are determined
in accordance with the actuarial studies made for the Retirement Plans. Annual cost is
determined using the projected unit credit method, The Group's latest actuarial valuation date
iz December 31, 2015, Valuations are obtained on a periodic basis.

The Retirement Plans are registered with the Bureau of Internal Revenue as tax-gualified plans
under Bepublic Act Mo, 2917, as amended.  The control and administeation of the Group's
Retirement Plans are vested in the Board of Trustess of sach Retirement Plan. The Board of
Trustees of the Group's Retirement Plans exercises voting rights over the shares and approve
material transactioms. The Retirement Plans’ accounting and adrinistrative functions are
undertaken by the Retirement Funds Office of the Group.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the net defined benefit retirement liability and its
COMPOnEnts:

Present Value of
Falr Value Defined Benefit Het Defined Benefit
of Plan Assets Chbligation Retirement Liability
2M5 20114 s 014 2015 2044
Balance at beginning
of year P544912 Ps87741 (P763,5BB) (PB44.432) [PHBTTE)  (P156,691)
Becognized in profit
or loss
Service costs . - (46,057 (51,375 (46,097 (51,375)
Interest expense 2 - (36,313 (FEasl (36313) 437 B
Interest income 25,584 28,185 - - 25,584 28,185

25,584 26185 (B2410)  (B9.243)  (54,824) {61.078]

Recognlzed in other
comprehensive income
Remeasurements
Aetuarial gaing (lostes]
arising from;
Experience adjusiments . . (123,240 $34,756)  [1E3.240) {34,755]
Changes in financial
assumptions = . 4073 A0 4073 2910
Changes in demographic
assumptions - - - 1454164 - 16,414
Return on plan assets
excluding intersst {53,537) {52 528) - - (563 537} [52.538]

63,537)  (52,528) (119.167) (174300 (182,704} 155758

Othvers
Contributions 97,077 GE.951 = - 7.7 £8.5951
Benefits paid 109,066 (187437 [109.066] 187,437 - -

206143 (118488 (10%066) 167437 7077 68,5751

Balanceatendofyear  P713102 PS44912 PLOTA3H) (PT63680) (PA6L22S) (FRATTH)

The Group's annual contribution to the Retirement Plans consists of payments covering the
current service cost plus amortization of unfunded past service liability,

Retirernent eosts recognlzed n the consolidated statements of income by GSMI amounted to
P52,143, P55,4697 and P43,010 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, while those charged by DBI
amoumbed to P4ARS, PA4.3ET and PRA3S in 2015, 2004 and 2013, respectively,

The retirement costs are recognized in the following lioe items:

MNate 201 2014 2013
Coat of sales 20 Pa,048 P8173 P17.039
Selling and marketing expenses 21 10,987 12494 13452
General and administrative expenses 22 T | 40,411 35245

P56,826  PALOTE P&6.444

Retirermnent  liabilities recognized by GSMI amounted to P342617 and P203533 as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, while those recognized by DBI amounied to P18.412
and P15,243 as of Decernber 31, 2015 and 2014. respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group's retirement plan approximate fair wvalues as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014,
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The Group's plan assets consist of the fallowing:

In Percentages
2015 2014
Fixed income portfiolio 42 38
Markelable securities 28 29
Stock trading portfolio 25 30
_rthers 4 3
100 106

investments.in Marketable Securities

The plan assets include 11443321 and 9943321 comumon shares of the Company with fair
market value per share of F12.258 and P15.88 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The fair market value per share of the above marketabie securities is determined based on
quated markel prices In active markets as of the reporting date (Mote 4),

The Group's Retirement Plans recognlzed losses an the Investment in marketable securitbes of
EMC and its subsidiaries amounting to P2£.180 and P70 794 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

There was no dividend imcome recognized in 2015 and 2014.
dnwestmencs in Foaled Funds
Investments in pooled funds were established mainly to put together a portion of the funds of

the REetirement Plans of the Group to be able to drave, nepotiste and obtain the best terms and
fimancial deals for the investments resulting from bie volume transactlons,

The Board of Trustees approved the percentage of asset to be allocated to fixed income
instruments and equities. The Retirement Plans have set maximum exposure limits for each
type of permissible investments in marketable securitles and deposit instruments. The Board of
Trustees may, from time to time, in the exercise of its reasonable discretion and taking into
account existing investment opportunities, review and revise such allocation and Homits,

Approximately 5.63% amnd T25% of the Retirement Plans investrents in pooled Tunds inestock
trading portfolio include inwestments in shares of stock of SMC and its subsidiaries as of
Decemniber 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

Approximately 10.84% and 10.06% of the Retirement Plans investments in pooled funds in
fixed inoorme portfiolio includs investrments in shares of stock of SMC and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 20015 and 2014, respectively,

Others

Others include the Retirement Plans cash and cash eguivalents and receivables which earn
imberest,

The Retirement Plans Trustee has no specific matching strategy bibween the plan assets and
the plam liahilities.

The Group is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable undsr the Retirement
Plans before they become duee. For this reason, the amount and timing of contributions to the
Retirement Plans are at the Group's discretion. Howewver, in the event a benefit claim arises and
the Retirement Plans are insufficient to pay the claim, the shortfall will then be due and
payahle from the Group to the Retirement Plans The Group s not expected to contribute te fts
definied benefit retirement plan in 2016
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The Retirement Plans expose the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rata
risk, lonpevity risk and salary risk as follows:

dnvestrrent and Inferest Rafe Rizks The present value of the defined benefit retirement
obligation is calculated using a disconnt rate determined by reference to market vields to
government bonds, Generally. a decrease In the Interest rate of a reference government bomd
will increase the defined benefit retirement obligation. Howewver, this will be partially offsat by
an increase in the return on the Retlrement Plan's investments and iF the return on plan asset
falls batow this rate, it will create a deficit in the Retirement Plans, Due to the long-term nature:
of the defined benefit retirement obligation, a level of continuing equity Investments is an
appropriate element of the long-term strategy of the Crowup to manage the Retirement Plans
efficiently,

Longevity and Salary Risks. The present value of the defined benefit retirement obligation is
calculated by reference to the best estimates of; (1} the mortality of the plan partcipants, and (2]
to the future salaries of the plan participants Consequently, increases in the life expectancy and
salary of the plan participants will result in an Increase In the defined benefit retirement
obligation.

The overall expected rate of return és determined based on historical performance of the
investments.

The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine retivement benefits are as tollows:

2015 2m4
Discount rate 4.54 - 524 4.3 -4.80
Salary imcTease rate T ¥

Assumptions for mortality and disability rates are based on published statistics and mortality
and disability tahles.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit retirement obligation ks 225 years and 2.4
vears as 0f December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the reasonable possible changes to one of the relevant
actuarial assumptions, while holding all other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit retirement obligation by the amounts below, respectively:

Defined Benefit
Retirement Obligation
Increase (Decrease]
2015 204

1 Percent 1 Percent 1 Percent 1 Percent
Increase Decrease Increase “TCASE

Discount cake (P2,025) Pe. 750 [P A P10,775
Salary increase rate 8,187 (7.760) .06 [8.574)

In 2015 and 2014, the Group's transaction relating to the Retirement Plans pertain to the
conftributions for the perind. There are no other transaction or outstanding receivables and
payables with the plan assets.
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3. Share-Based Transactions

ESFP

Under the ESPP, 3,000,000 shares (inclusive of stock dividends declared] of the Company’s
unissued shares have been reserved for the emplovees of the Company. All permanent
Philippine-based employees of the Company, who have been employed far a continuous perlod
of one yvear prior to the subscription period, will be allowed to subscribe at 15% discount to the
market price equal 1o the weighted average of the daily clesing prices for thres manths prior to
the offer period. A particpating employes may scguire at least 100 shares of stock through
payrall deductions

The ESPP requires the subscribed shares and stock dividends accruing thereto to be pledged to
the Company until the subscriptbon is fully paid. The right to subscribe under the ESPF cannot
be assigned or transferred. A participant may sell his shares after the second year from the
epercine dats,

Subscriptions receivable amounted to P335 and P4.575 25 of Decernber 31, 2015 and 2074
respectively, presented. as part of “Trade and other receivables” acoount in the consolidated
statements of financial position (Mote &),

The ESEP alsn allowrs subsequent withdrawal and canceilation of participants” subscriptions
under certain terms and conditizns. The shares pertaining to withdrawn or canoelled
subseripdions shall remain issued shares and shall revert to the pool of shares available under
the ESFP.

There were no shares offered under the ESFF in 2015 and 2014,

32 Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

Obiecti { Palici
The Group has significant exposure to the following financial risks primarily Irom its use of
financial instruments:

Interest Rate Risk
Foreign Currency Risk
Comrmodity Price Rizk
Liguidity Risk

Credit Risk

This note presents information about the exposure to each of the foregoing risks. the objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks, and for management of capital

The principal non-trade related financial instruments of the Group include cash and cash
equivalents, short-term and long-term loans and derivative instruments. These financial
instrurments. except derfvative instruments, are used malnly for working capital management
purposes. The trade-related financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group such as trade
and other receivables. noncurrent receivables and deposits and trade and other payables arise
directly fromand are used to facilitate its daily cperations,

The accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in Mote 3 to the consolidated
financial statements,

The BOD has the owverall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
managerment framework of the Group. The BOD has established the Risk Management
Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management palicies.
The carmmittes reports regularly to the BOD an s activities.
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The risk management policies of the Group are established to identity and analyze the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate tisk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes In market conditlons and acthvities. The Group, through its training and management
stapdards and procedures. aims {0 develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all empioyess understand thedr roles and obligations,

The BOD constituted the Audit Committes to assist the BOD in fulfilling its oversight
responsibility of the Group's corporate governance process relating to the: a) guality and
integrity of the fnancial statements and financial reporting process and the systems of internal
accounting and financial controls bl performance of the internal awditors; ¢l annual
independent audit of the financial statements. the engagement of the independent auditors and
the evaluation of the independent auditors’ qualifications, independence and performance; d)
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, incleding the disclosure control and
procedures; e} evaluation of management’s process o assess and manage the enterprise risk
issues; and §) fulfillment of the other responsibitities set out by the BOD. The Audit Committes
ghall also prepare the reports required to be Ineluded [n the annual report of the Group,

The Audit Commities also oversess how management monitors compliance with the risk
management policies and procedures of the Group and reviews the adequacy of the rizk
management framework In relation to the tisks faced by the Group, The Audit Committes s
aszisted in its oversight role by Intermal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad
hos reviews of risk management controls and procedures. the results of which are reported to
the Audit Committes.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate rick is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow
interest rate risk) or its fair value {fair value Interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to changes in inberest rates relates primarily to
the long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued &t fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Om the other hand, borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk,

The Group manages its interast cost by using an optimal combination of fxed and varfable rate
debt instruments. Management is responsible for monitoring the prevailing market-based
interest rate and ensures that the mark-up rates charged on its borrowings are optimal and
benchimarked against the rates charged by other creditor banks,

In managing interast rate risk, the Group aimg to reduce the impact of short-termn Aucheations
on the carnings. Owver the longer term, however, permanent changes in interest rates would
have an impact an profit or e

The management of interest rate risk is also supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the
Group’s financial instruments to variows standard and non-standard interest rate scenarios.

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible 1% increase in the interest rates, with all other variables
hedd ennstant, would have decreased the Group's prolil belfore tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings) by P4,343, P5,.221 and P&.3B0 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. A
1% decpease in the interest rate would have Bad the equal but epposite effect These changes
are considered to be reasocnably possibie given the observation of prevailing market conditions
in thase periods. There §s no impact an the Group's other comprehensive income.
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Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency is the Philippine peso, which is the denormination of the bulk of the
Groups revenues The exposure to foreign currency risk results from significant movements in
foreign exchange rates that adversely affect the foreign currency denominated transactions of
the Growp, The risk management objective with respect to foreign currency risk §s to reduce or
eliminate earnings volatility and any adverse impact on equity.

Information on the Group's [oreign currency-denominated monetary assets and their
Philippine peso squivalents is as follows

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Peso Pesa
US Doltar Eguivalent S Dollar  Equivalent
Asgsets

Cash and cash equivalents Lisg103 Pe.102 Ls32 440 P09 137
Trade and other receivables 187 B.814 B0 25,954

Foreign currency-dencminated
monetary assets LUIS$380 F17.%16 Lis3.020 P135091

The Group reported net boss {gains) on foreign exchange from continuing and discontinued
operations amounting to P2OSL, (P2 778 and (FF.580) in 2015, 2004 and 2013, respectively, with
the transiation of its foreign currency-derominated assets (Motes & and 25 These mainly
resulted from the movements of the Philippine peso against the US deliar as shown in the
following table:

U5 Dollar
to Philippine Peso
December 31, 2015 47,060
December 31, 2014 44720
_December 31, 2013 SHMS.

The management of foraign currency risk is also supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of
the Group’s financiatl instruments tovarious foreign currency exchange rate soenarios.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the U3
dollar exchange rate, with all cther variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets) and the Group's equity;

P1 Decrease in the Pl Increase in the
US Dallar Exchange Rate LIS Dallar Exchange Rate
Effect on Eftect on
Income Income
before Effect on befare  Effect on
December 31, 2015 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash equivalents (P193) (P135) P193 P135
_Trade and other receivables [187) {131) 187 13

vl

(P380) (P26&) P380 Pa&s
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F1 Decrease in the F1Increase in the
U5 Dollar Exchange Rate US Dollar Exchange Rate
Effect on Effect on

Income before Effect on Income before  Effecton

December 31, 2014 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash equivalents (P2 4401} PL708) F2a40 FL70S
Trade and other receivables {580} (404 SBO A0
(P3.020} (P2.114) P3020 P2114

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overssas
transactions. Nonetheless. the analysts above is considered to be representative of the Group's

foreipn currency risk.

Cornmodity Price Risk

Commadity price risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument will
fiuctuate becawse of changes In commaodity prices, The Group, thraugh SMC, enters into various
commodity derivatives to manage its price risks on strategic commodities. Commeodity hedging
allows stability in prices, thus olisetting the risk of volatile markel luctuations. Throagh
hedging, prices of commaodities are fixed at levels acceptable to the Group. thus protecting raw
material cost and preserving marging. For hedging transactions, if prices go down, hedge
positions: may show marked-to-market. losses; however, any loss in the marked-to-market
pasithon is offset by the resulting lower physical raw material cost.

SMC enters into commedity derivative transactions on behalf of the Group to reduce cost by
optimizing purchasing synergies within the SMC Group and managing inventory levels of
common materials

Commodity Forwards. The Group enbers into forward purchases of various commodities. The
prices of the commodity forwards are fixed either through direct agreement with suppliers or
by reference to a relevant commoedity price index.

Uiy Risd
Liguildity risk pertalns to the visk that the Group will encounter difficalty to meet payment
obligations whean they fall under normal and stress circumstances.

The Group's chjectives to manage its liguidity risk are as follows a) to ensure that adequate
funding is available at all times; b to meet commitments as they arise without Incurring
unnecessary costs; o) to be able to access funding when needed at the least possible cost; and d) to

maintain an adequate time spread of refinancing maturities,

The Group constantly monitors and manages its Hoquidity position. liguidity gaps and surplus on
a daily basis. A committed stand-by credit facility from several local banks is also available to
ensure availability of funds when necessary.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities based on contractual wndiscounted receipts and payments used for liquidity

management.
Enrnrtng Contyactual 1¥ear =1%ear- »23Years-

December 31, 2015 Cash Flow or Less 2 Years 5 Years
Finaneial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P445B01  P445800  Pad5801 P- F -
Trade and other

receivahles - net 280303 2B02212 2.B0Z213
Derivative assets fncheded unider

“Prepald sxpences and obiey

current agsets” acoount] 430 430 430 ¥

Moencurrent recetvables and
clesperstits ineluced wiser "Other

noncurrent assets - net” accouand] 187 338 187338 - 184,853 485
Financial Liabilities
Motes payable 8406460 B458BI7 B4588I7
Trade and other payahies

fexcluding dividends payabls

and derivative Habilities) 2230667 1,230,667 2,230,667

Dverivative labilites fincluded
unider “Trade and other

payables” acoounth 128 128 128 . .
Long-term detwt {nehuding

curtTent maturities 342857 345,318 126,483 12183 117022

Carrving  Contractual 1¥ear =1Year- =>Z%ears-

December 31, 3014 Amount  Cash Fhow or Less 2 Years 5 Years
Financlal Assets
E.i:]-landmhuqulvahnu P77 PE7R 917 PsTeR1T P- P -
Trade and other

receivables - net 392 468 2921448 IR A58 - -
Derivative assets {incleded under

“Prepald expences and other

current assets” accennt] 52 52 53 - -

Moncurrent recepvalbdes and

depoalts {Inehided wnder "Other

noncurrent assets - nef” account] 189 94] 189 95 = 189 454 af5
Financial Liahilities
Mot payabile 10,084 440 10152413 10152613 - -
Tracte and ather payables

woxcluding dividends payable and

derivative lEabilities) 2371555 2313555 2323555 - -
Derivative labilities fincluded

under "Trade and other payables”

acominiy 350 360D 340 = *
Long-term debt (inciueding curnent

mraluritiest 457543 AR 155 13524 125524 237717

Credit Risk

Credit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument falls to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from trade and other
receivables, The Group manages its credit risk mainky through the application of transaction
lmits and close risk monitoring. It s the Group's pollcy to enter inta transactions with a wide
diversity of creditworthy counterparties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit sk

The Group has regpular intermal control reviews to monitor the granting of credit and
management of credit exposures.
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Trade and Cther Recelvabies

The exposure to credit risk 5 influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. However, management also considers the demographics of the Group's customer
base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as
these factors may have an influence on the credit risk,

Goods are subiject o retention of title clauses so thal in the event of default, the Group would
have a secured claim. Where appropriate, the Group obtains collateral or arranges master
netting dgreemenls,

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before the standard payment and delivery berms and
conditions are offered. The Group ensures that zales on account are made to custamers with
appropriate credit history, The Group has detailed credit criteria and several layers of credit
approval requirements before engaging a particular customer or counterparty: The review
Includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases bank references. Purchase limits
are established for each customer and are reviewed on a repular basis Customers that fail to
Eaet the Benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group anly on a prepayment
5L5.

The Group establishes an- allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of
incurred Josses in respect of trade and other receivables, The main components of this
allowance include a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures,
and a callective loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that
have been incurred but not vet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on
historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets,

Financial information on the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk, without considering the
effects of collaterals and ather risk mitigation technigues. is presented balow.

Nate 2015 4
Cash and cash equivalents Z P445801 L=
Trade and other receivables - net g 28022112 3971448
Derivative assets I 430 52
Moncurrent receivables and depasits 14 187,338 157281

P3,435 781 P4 491,410

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and derivative assets is considered negligible, since
the counterparties are reputable entities with high quality external credit ratings.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of counterparty.  Generally, the
maximuwm credit risk exposure of trade and other receivables and noncuerrent recelvables and
deposits is its carrying amount without considering collaterals or credit enhancements, if any.
The Graup has o significant concentration of credit risk since the Group deals with & large
number of homogenous counterparties. The Group does not execute any credit gearantee in
favar of any counterparty.

Capital Management

The Group maintains a sound capilal base to ensure its ahbiliby to continue & a going concern,
thereby continue to provide returns to stockhelders and benetits to other stakeholders and to
rnaintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment teshareholders, pay-off existing debiz, return capltal to shareholders ar ssue
new shares.
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The Group defines capital as paid-in capital siock, additional paid-in capital and retained
earnings, both appropriated and unappropriated. Other components of equity such as treasury
stock, cumulative transiation adjustments and reserve for retirement plan are excluded from
capital for purposes of capital management.

The BOD has averall responsibility for monitoring capital in proportion to risk. Profiles for
capital ratios are sel in the lght of changes In the external environment and the risks
underlying the Group's business, operation and industry.

The Group menitors capital on the basis of debt-to-equity ratio, which is caloulated as total debt
divided by total equity, Tatal debi iz defined az total current Hakilities and total noncurrent
liabilities, while equity is total equity as shown in the consolidated statements of financial
pasition,

The Group 13 not subject to externally [mposed capital requirements,

33. Finamcial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The table below presents a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of the
Group's Hinancial Instruments

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2004
Carrying Fair CArTYing Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial Assats
Cash and cash equivalents P445801  P445801 P5re.917 PSTe97
Trade and other receivables - net 2802212 2802212 3521448 3921468
Derivative assets (included under
“Prepaid expenses and cther current
aszets” account) 430 430 52 52
Moncurrent recejvables and deposits -
net included under *Other
noncurrent assets - met” account) 187,338 187,338 1875981 189,981
Financial Liabilities
Motes payable B 406480 B40&460 10084440 100084440
Trade and other payables fexcleding
dividends payable and detivative
liabilities) 2230667 2230,667 2323555 2 2323555
Derivative liabilities {included under
*Trade and other payables® account) 128 128 30 a0
Long-term debt (including current
__maturities) 342 857 342 857 457143 457143

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the falr value of each class of
financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Gguivalents Trade and Other Recefvables and Noncurrent Recefvables and
Depagite The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other recelvables
approximates fair walue primarily due to the relatively short-term maturities of these financial
instruments. In the case of noncurrent recelvables and depasits, the fair value is based on the
present value of expected future cash flows using the applicable discount rates based on current
market rates of kentical or similar guoted instruments,

Derfvatives. The fair values of forward exchange contracts are caleulated by reference (o
current forward exchange rates. Fair values for embedded derivatives are based on valuation
models used for similar instruments using both observable and non-observable inputs,
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Mates Papabde and Trade and Other Papablas The carrying amount of notes payable and trade
and other pavables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturities of these
financial instruments.

Lomg-term Deby, The fair value of interest-bearing fixed-rate leans is based on the discounted
value of expected future cash flows using the applicable market rates for similar types of
instrurments as of reporting date. Discount rates used for Phillppine peso-denominated loans
range from 2.4% to 4.6% and 2.5% to 4.3% as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
carrying amounts of floating rate loans with quarberly interest rate repricing approximate their
fair values.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Group's derivative financial instriments according to the type of financial risk being
managed and the details of ermbedded derivative financial instruments are discussed below,

ThEGrnup enters !l“:ﬂ -:-ertaln derwatwea as economic hedges of cerfain underlying exposures,
These Include embedded derivatives found in host conlracts, which are not designated as
accounting hedges. Changes in fair value of these instruments are accounted for directly in the
consolidated statements of income. Details are as follows:

Embadded Currency Forwards

The total outstanding motional amount of corrency forwards embedded in non-financial
contracts amounted to US34458 and WSSE2E as of December 31, 2005 and 2014, respectively.
These non-financial contracts consist mainly of foreipn currency denominated purchase orders
and sales agreements. The embedded forwards are not clearly and closely related to their
respective host contracts. The net fair valee of these embedded currency forwards amounted
to P302 and (P308) as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

The Group recognized marked-to-market gains (Josses) from embedded derivatives amounting
to (F702), (PZ.45%) and P1LO07 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (Note 26),

The net movements in fair value of all derivative instruments are as follows:

2015 2014

Balance at beginning of year {P308} (P259)
Met changes in Falr value of non-accounting hedges (702} (2459
{1,010} {2,718)

Less fair value of scttled instruments {1,312} (2410
Balance at end of year F30z (P308)

Fair Value Hierarchy

Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair walue in the consolidated statements of
financial position are categorized in accordance with the falr walue hierarchy. This hierarchy
groups financial assets and financial labilities into three levels based on the significance of
fryputs used i measuring the falr valee af the financial azsets and financial Habilites (Mate 31



94 GINEBRA SAN MIGUEL INC.

The table balow analyzes financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method:

_December 31, 2015 __ December 31,2014
Leveli Level2 Total Levell Level2  Total
Financial Assets
Derivative assets F - P430 P30 P - Poz P52
Financial Liabilities
Derivative liabilities - 128 128 - 360 350

The Group has no finandal instruments valued based on Level 1 and Level 3 as of December 31,
25 and 2014, During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measuremenis,

34, Other Matters
a Comnmutments

= The Company has a Toll Manufacturing Agreement with third parties for the
production of its aleoholic and nonalcohalic products Toll manulacturing expense
amounting to PEZA77. P245 348 and P2BASE2 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
wiere included as part of "Outside services” account under the "Cost of sales” account
(Mote 207,

»  The outstanding purchase commitments of the Company amounted to US5105225
(P4.951,885) and US$19 837 (PE87 113} as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

b. Contingancies

The Growp is a party to certain lawsuits or claims (mostly labor related cases) filed by third
parties which are either pending decision by the courts or are subject to settlement
agreements. The outcome of these lawsaits or claims cannot be presantly determined. In
the opinion of management and its l2gal counsel, the eventual lability from these lawsuits
ot claims, if any, will not hawe a material effect on the consolidated financial starements of
the Group, Mo provision was recognized in 2015, 2004 and 2013,

¢. Certain accounts in pricr years have been reclassified for consistency with the current
period presentation, These reclassificattons have o effect on the reported financial
parformance for any period.
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CORPORATE HEAD OFFICE

Ginebra San Miguel Inc.

3rd and 6th Floors

San Miguel Properties Centre

7 St. Francis Street, Mandaluyong City
1550 Metro Manila, Philippines
Telephone: (632) 841-5100

SHAREHOUSE SERVICES AND ASSISTANCE

The SMC Stock Transfer Services Corporation serves
as the Company'’s stock transfer agent and registrar.
For inquiries regarding dividend payments, change
of address and account status, lost or damaged
stock certificate, please write or call:

SMC STOCK TRANSFER SERVICE CORPORATION
2nd Floor, SMC Head Office

40 San Miguel Avenue, Mandaluyong City

1550 Metro Manila, Philippines

Telephone: (632) 632-3450 to 52

Email Address: smc_stscldsanmiguel.com.ph

CUSTOMER CARE
For inquiries, orders and suggestions on our
products and services, please write or call:

SAN MIGUEL CUSTOMER CARE CENTER

San Miguel Properties Centre

7 St. Francis Street, Mandaluyong City

1550 Metro Manila, Philippines

Telephone: (632) 632-BLOG (2564)

Fax: (632) 632-3299 Mailbox No. 2005#

Email: customercare.corporatefdsanmiguel.com.ph



3rd and 6th Floors, San Miguel Properties Centre
7 St. Francis Street, Mandaluyong City

1550 Metro Manila, Philippines
www.ginebrasanmiguel.com



